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About the Institute
Established in 1963, the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) is the national accountancy body that develops, 
supports and enhances the integrity, status and interests of the profession.

The Certifi ed Public Accountant Singapore (CPA Singapore) is a professional in accountancy, fi nance and business who has the relevant 
work experience in addition to a recognised accountancy qualifi cation. CPAs Singapore serve every corner of the world across every 
industry. Many of them helm some of the foremost local and international corporations.

CPA Singapore is a distinctive brand valued by employers and members. Employers recognise the designation as the defi nitive standard 
for measuring competence and excellence in the fi elds of accounting, fi nance and business.

ICPAS accords the CPA Singapore designation. Working alongside businesses, ICPAS connects its members to an unmatched range of 
information resources, events, professional development and networking opportunities. Presently, there are more than 23,000 members 
making their stride in businesses across all industries in Singapore and around the world.

ICPAS’ international outlook and connections are refl ected in its membership of regional and international professional organisations 
like the ASEAN Federation of Accountants, Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association and IFAC. 

The Institute also caters for the training and professional development of its members through regular courses conducted by its training 
arm, the SAA Global Education (SAA-GE). Established in 1985 with a vision to service and advance the needs of the accountancy 
industry, the Academy has trained thousands of individuals to upgrade their education and career knowledge through various academic 
and continuing professional education (CPE) programmes. There are currently more than 5,000 part-time and full-time students studying 
at SAA-GE. Among them are students from Singapore, China, Indonesia, Myanmar, the Philippines, Vietnam, and other countries in 
the Asia Pacifi c.

ICPAS is also the partner of the ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination Scheme (JES).The Scheme has been successfully run by ICPAS and 
ACCA since 1983, and thousands of JES students have graduated and gone on to rewarding careers.



Ernest Kan
ICPAS President

PresidentMessage from theMessage from the

We aim to be a catalyst for Singapore’s future 

success as a global accountancy hub, and the 

catalyst for our members’ success as we help 

you navigate the myriad changes to come.

”

“
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The landmark CDAS recommendations will have a deep 

impact not just on the Institute but also across the profession.

Guided by our AIM (Accountancy 
excellence, Industry growth and Member 
& human capital development) strategic 
plan, ICPAS continued to pursue goals 
that are aligned with our vision to be a 
leading accountancy body that embodies 
the Singapore brand promise of Trust, 
Responsiveness and Innovation.

Preparing for Future Success

In April 2010, the Committee to 
Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) 
announced its recommendations for 
transforming Singapore into a global 
accountancy hub by 2020. These 
recommendations were accepted by the 
government in May 2010. Underscoring 
the vital role of ICPAS as the national 
accountancy body, the Institute was 
named in a number of recommendations. 
Specifi cally, ICPAS will be administering 
a Singapore-branded, post-university 
professional accountancy qualifi cation 
programme under the oversight of the 
Singapore Accountancy Council (SAC). 
The programme is envisioned to be 
globally recognised and internationally 
portable, with an “Asian market 
value factor”. The Committee also 
recommended that ICPAS be transformed 
into a professional accountancy body 
with global membership, outlook and 
standing.  

The landmark CDAS recommendations 
will have a deep impact not just on the 
Institute but also across the profession. 
As the national accountancy body, we are 
working closely with the Pro-Tem SAC to 
bring the vision to fruition. We aim to be 
a catalyst for Singapore’s future success 
as a global accountancy hub, and the 
catalyst for our members’ success as we 
help you navigate the myriad changes to 
come.  

Supporting the Profession, 
Developing the Sector

In the light of the CDAS 
recommendations, and to enable the 
accountancy profession to understand the 
key issues facing the sector, we organised 
the Singapore Accountancy Convention 
– A Profession on the Move, where 
thought leaders and industry experts, 
including speakers from the International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC), shared 
their views on global and local issues. We 
were privileged to have Mrs Lim Hwee 
Hua, Minister in the Prime Minister’s 
Offi ce and Second Minister for Finance 
and Transport, grace the occasion as the 
convention’s guest-of-honour, and ICPAS 
Adviser Mr Teo Ser Luck, Mayor, North 
East District and Senior Parliamentary 
Secretary, Ministry of Community 
Development, Youth and Sports and 
Ministry of Transport, as the gala dinner’s 
guest-of-honour. More than 1,200 
participants attended the convention and 
gala dinner, making it one of ICPAS’ most 
successful events. 

Underlying the CDAS recommendation 
to build research capabilities, ICPAS 
Research, our research arm, has been 
spearheading research efforts in various 
areas, including organising thought 
leadership roundtables, producing 
whitepapers and providing research 
funding. Through ICPAS Research, the 
Institute facilitated debate and gathered 
feedback from CPAs Singapore and the 
business community on a topic of national 
interest – the Singapore Budget 2010. I 
had the honour of co-chairing the Pre-
Budget and Post-Budget Roundtables 
with Ms Jessica Tan, Chairman of the 
Government Parliamentary Committee 
for Finance and Trade & Industry, and 
the pleasure of joining some of the top 
minds in business and accountancy in the 
discussions. Insights from the roundtables 
were provided as feedback to the 
government. 

In December 2010, we reinforced 
our commitment to promoting and 
developing accounting research when we 
inked a Memorandum of Understanding 
with Singapore Management University’s 
School of Accountancy Research (SOAR) 
to collaborate on accounting, business, 
professional and thought-leadership 
research and activities.  

Last year, the Institute continued to 
support standard-setting by identifying 
practice issues, providing accounting 
and auditing guidance, and working 
with standard setters and regulatory 
bodies. As the profession’s regulatory 
framework and fi nancial reporting and 
assurance standards grow in complexity, 
it is imperative that we work towards 
strengthening the capabilities of our 
members and equipping you with the 
skills and expertise to help you succeed 
in this environment. To this end, we have 
conducted many educational seminars 
structured along the key pillars of 
Thought Leadership, Practice Leadership, 
Professional Development and Practice 
Development.   

In collaboration with the Accounting 
Standards Council (ASC), the Institute 
planned a series of educational events 
to guide members on SFRS for Small 
Entities. We also designed a Clarity 
Project 2010 Roadmap to help members 
and companies understand the Clarifi ed 
SSAs. ICPAS’ Public Practice Programme, 
launched in collaboration with the 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory 
Authority (ACRA) in August, is a 
mandatory requirement for prospective 
public accountants to prepare them for 
the responsibilities of public practice. 

Recognising the need to prepare tax 
professionals for more cross-border 
businesses and a more multifaceted 
tax environment, ICPAS partnered 
the Tax Academy of Singapore to 
launch the Singapore Institute of 
Accredited Tax Professionals (SIATP), 
the fi rst accreditation body for tax 
professionals here, in May 2010. SIATP 
provides accredited tax professionals 
with professional recognition and skills 
development, giving them access to 
up-to-date industry knowledge, and 
sharpening their technical competence. 
SIATP also serves to position Singapore 
as the regional centre of excellence for 
tax education.

Dear CPAs Singapore and fellow professionals,
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To ensure that our members are always 
kept updated, we created the Online 
Knowledge Centres – microsites which 
can be accessed 24/7 to suit our 
members’ individual schedules. To date, 
we have microsites dedicated to ethics, 
fi nancial reporting, country-specifi c data, 
business and accounting research, as well 
as auditing and assurance. We will be 
launching more microsites in the coming 
months.

Building Our Brand

Building a strong brand has always been a 
priority for ICPAS, as boosting the brand 
equity of the CPA Singapore designation 
translates into benefi ts for our members 
in terms of professional recognition 
and career portability. Our 2010 brand 
campaign communicated the key 
message “Every success needs a catalyst. 
Accelerate/ Elevate your career with CPA 
Singapore” by featuring prominent CPAs 
Singapore and showcasing how the CPA 
Singapore designation is part of their 
success story. 

We also increased brand awareness with 
a heightened media profi le. In 2010, we 
more than doubled the number of media 
hits compared to 2009, which was in turn 
double that of 2008. Our collaboration 
with The Straits Times to publish our 
articles regularly further boosted our 
share of voice. We also intensifi ed our 
digital branding efforts through our 
Facebook page, YouTube channel, Twitter, 
Flickr and blog.

In Closing

I am deeply encouraged that our 
membership base has continued to 
grow by leaps and bounds. As at end 
December 2010, ICPAS has 23,109 
members, an 8.5 per cent increase from 
the year before. This represents the 
highest membership growth in ICPAS’ 
history. This strong and sustained growth 
in membership affi rms the work we 
have done, and tells us we are on the 
right track. I am immensely grateful for 
your support, which fuels our continued 
success. 

The Institute also owes our achievements 
to the hard work and commitment of our 
Adviser Mr Teo Ser Luck, the Executive 
Committee and Council Members, 
committee members, management team 
and all our staff. I want to thank each and 
every one for your dedication, hard work 
and immense contribution. 

Just as Singapore has embarked on its 
journey to be a global accountancy hub, 
the Institute, too, is working towards 
our goal to be a global accountancy 
body. To fulfi l our role as the go-to body 
for the profession, ICPAS must assume 
an international outlook and standing. 
In preparation, we have initiated an 
independent review of our Constitution, 
and are looking into our governance 
structure and systems. With your support, 
we are starting on a fi rm footing. 

Indeed, the future is bright as Singapore’s 
development as an accountancy hub 
spells greater opportunities for the 
profession, and a vibrant and fl ourishing 
accountancy sector.  This also means that 
the profession needs to step up its efforts 
in skills development, talent attraction 
and retention, and enhance its offerings 
in professional expertise and services. We 
aim to support you on this growth journey 
and prepare you for the future.

Together, we can forge a path to greater 
success.

Ernest Kan
President

Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants 
of Singapore

The future 

is bright.  

Singapore’s 

development as 

an accountancy 

hub spells greater 

opportunities for 

the profession, 

and a vibrant 

and fl ourishing 

accountancy 

sector.

”

“
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20082008 20092009 20102010

TOTAL REVENUE SHARE OF PROFIT OF 
ASSOCIATES (NET OF TAX)

(S$)(S$)(S$) TOTAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 
FOR THE YEAR

Statistical Highlights

ACTIVITIES  2008  2009  2010
 
No. of Committees  33  30  24
No. of Meetings  57  68  59
Publications of the Institute  27  23  27
Courses and Talks  335  250  369
Conferences  1  -  1
 
MEMBERSHIP

No. of Members  20,258  21,299  23,109
Total Subscriptions $ 2,772,763 $ 2,901,900 $ 3,129,390
Total Secretariat’s Expenses $ 3,368,310 $ 3,811,103  $ 14,103,165
Total Secretariat’s Expenses (Without impairment loss) $ - $ -  $ 5,694,238
Average Subscription per Member1 $ 137 $ 136 $ 135
Average Expense per Member $ 166 $ 179 $ 610
Average Expense per Member (Without impairment loss) $ - $ -  $ 246
 
TOTAL REVENUE $ 19,889,9452 $ 21,420,2812 $ 23,079,9112 
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 14,145,5702 $ 16,247,6842 $ 28,382,6562 
TOTAL EXPENSES (Without impairment loss) $ - $ -  $ 19,973,7292 
 
SHARE OF PROFIT OF ASSOCIATES (NET OF TAX) $ 12,1032 $ 8,4522 $ (12,767)2

 
INCOME TAX EXPENSES $ 986,3402 $ 864,1422 $ 601,9202

 
TOTAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR $ 4,770,1382 $ 4,316,9072 $ (5,917,432)2

1 This is based solely on members’ subscriptions and does not take into account other sources of income
2 Consolidated fi gure

2008 2009 2010

(5,917,432) 2
(12,767) 2

4,316,9082

8,4522

21,420,2822

23,079,9112

4,770,138212,1032

19,889,9452
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NUMBER OF MEMBERS
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Membership Class Age (in years)

Practising Non-Practising 

Provisional Members in Retirement

31-40 

51-60 

41-50

FemaleMale

Local vs Overseas Gender

Membership

The Institute experienced an 

unprecedented membership 

growth rate of 8.5 percent in 2010, 

representing the highest growth 

in ICPAS’ history.  The Institute’s 

membership base surpassed the 

22,000th mark in May and crossed 

the 23,000th mark in October.

Membership Profi le

Overseas Local

2008 Year2009 2010

20,258
21,299 

23,109 

21,299

20,258



The Council is pleased to present the 2010/2011 Annual Report and Accounts of the Institute for the year 
ended 31 December 2010.

At the fi rst Council meeting held in April 2010, the following Council members were elected as offi ce bearers:

Council Report

THE COUNCIL
 
The 2010/2011 Council held seven ordinary meetings from April 2010 to March 2011.  Column A indicates 
the number of Council meetings the member attended; Column B shows the number of committees he/she 
sits on. 

 A B  A B

Ee Hock Kim, Gerard 4 5 Quek Shi Kui 4 1

Ho Mun-Tuke, Don 5 2 R. Dhinakaran 6 2

Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest 7 4 Sitoh Yih Pin 4 2

Khoo Ho Tong 7 5 Tan Boen Eng 7 5

Kon Yin Tong  1 3 Wong Lai Yong 7 3

Lim Boon Cheng 4 5 Yee Lat Shing, Tom 6 5

Low Ngiap Jong, Jeann 3 2 Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian 4 3

Pang Yang Hoong 6 2 Yeoh Oon Jin 4 3

Phan Swee Kim, Steven 3 3 Yim Kam May 6 1

President  Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest

Vice President  Ee Hock Kim, Gerard

Treasurer  Phan Swee Kim, Steven

12
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Highlights of the Year

JANUARY

ICPAS-PA MOU to 
Facilitate Volunteerism  
ICPAS and the People’s 
Association (PA) signed 
a Memorandum of 
Understanding on 18 
January to encourage 
the Institute’s members 
to volunteer with PA’s 
grassroots organisations. 

Inaugural ICPAS 
Pre-Budget Roundtable    
ICPAS organised the fi rst 
Pre-Budget Roundtable 
on 14 January to gather 
insights from prominent 
CPAs Singapore, business 
leaders and academics. 
Panellists debated the 
effectiveness of Budget 
2009, and focus areas for 
Budget 2010.  

FEBRUARY

From SAA to SAA 
Global Education    
In compliance with the 
Private Education Act, 
ICPAS’ training arm SAA 
was incorporated as a 
separate legal entity. 
Renamed SAA Global 
Education, it sports a new 
corporate identity distinct 
from the Institute’s. 

ICPAS Issues Final Set of 
Clarifi ed SSAs 
ICPAS issued the fi nal 
set of the Clarifi ed 
Singapore Standards on 
Auditing (SSAs). Based on 
international standards, 
the Clarifi ed SSAs provide 
enhanced guidance to 
strengthen audit quality, 
thus contributing to a more 
robust fi nancial reporting 
process.

Practice Monitoring 
Programme Forum   
The Institute’s Public 
Accounting Practice 
Committee organised a 
“Forum on the
Practice Monitoring 
Programme (PMP)” on 
9 February. The forum 
discussed common 
fi ndings of the PMP 
reviews, new initiatives for 
public accountants and 
programmes and resources 
of other accounting bodies.  

MARCH

ICPAS Post-Budget 2010 
Roundtable 
Dr Ernest Kan and Ms 
Jessica Tan co-chaired the 
Post-Budget Roundtable 
on 1 March, where leaders 
in business, practice 
and academia discussed 
whether Budget 2010 was 
of the right size, directed 
at the right objectives and 
made the right moves.

Budget 2010 Seminar 
Speakers at the “2010 
Budget Update and Recent 
Tax Developments” seminar 
on 8 March discussed the 
implications of Budget 
2010.  

New Monthly Technical 
e-Newsletter 
ICPAS launched TechWatch, 
a monthly e-newsletter for 
members. The publication 
brings together updates on 
fi nancial reporting, auditing, 
taxation, regulation and 
business. 

IFRS for SMEs Seminar 
To disseminate knowledge 
and keep members 
updated, ICPAS organised 
the “IFRS for SMEs – 
Understanding what’s in 
it for you” Seminar on 12 
March.  
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APRIL

Leadership Appointments
Ms Jeann Low, 
Group Chief Financial 
Offi cer of Singapore 
Telecommunications and 
Mr R. Dhinakaran, Managing 
Director of the Jay Gee 
Group of Companies, 
were elected to the ICPAS 
Council. Dr Ernest Kan, 
Chief of Operations (Clients 
& Markets) of Deloitte 
Singapore, was re-elected 
ICPAS President, and 
Mr Gerard Ee, Chairman 
of the National Kidney 
Foundation, was re-elected 
Vice President.  ICPAS 
Council Member Mr Steven 
Phan, Country Managing 
Partner of Ernst and Young 
LLP, was elected Treasurer.  

New Online Knowledge 
Centres 
At its AGM, ICPAS launched 
four microsites to equip 
members and the public 
with timely resources 

related to business and 
accountancy matters. They 
are ICPAS Ethics Centre, 
ICPAS Country Desk, 
ICPAS Centre for Financial 
Reporting and ICPAS 
Research. 

MAY 

First Accreditation Body 
for Tax Professionals 
ICPAS, in partnership 
with the Tax Academy 
of Singapore, launched 
SIATP, the country’s fi rst 
accreditation body for tax 
professionals, on 7 May. 
The guest-of-honour was 
Minister Mrs Lim Hwee Hua.

Ministry of Finance 
Accepts CDAS 
Recommendations   
At the launch of SIATP, 
Minister Lim announced 
that the recommendations 
by CDAS, released in April, 
have been accepted by the 
Ministry of Finance.  

New Qualifi cation & 
Programme Development 
Division    
The Institute set up 
a Qualifi cation and 
Programme Development 
(QPD) Division. The new 
division will work with 
stakeholders, including 
ACRA, universities, CPA 
fi rms and employers, in 
the development and 
implementation of the 
proposed qualifi cation 
programme, as the 
administrator under the 
oversight of the Pro-Tem 
SAC, as outlined in the 
CDAS Report. 

JUNE

Asia-Pacifi c Finance & 
Accounting Salary Guide
ICPAS partnered global 
fi nancial recruitment fi rm 
Robert Half to launch the 
2010/2011 Asia-Pacifi c 
Finance & Accounting 
Salary Guide on 23 June. 

JULY

ICPAS Beats 22,000th Mark 
Having broken the 22,000th 
mark in membership,  
ICPAS celebrated the 
milestone with a party at 
its Members’ Networking 
Night on 8 July. Dr Kan 
presented a special 
certifi cate to the Institute’s 
22,000th member, Mr 
Brandon Liu. About 180 
guests at DXO @ Colours 
by the Bay enjoyed a fun-
fi lled evening.

SAA Global Education 
Attains EduTrust Mark  
SAA Global Education 
was accorded the 
EduTrust certifi cation by 
the Council for Private 
Education, a statutory 
board which regulates 
the private education 
sector. The certifi cation is 
given to private education 
institutions which meet  
stringent performance 
criteria.
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Revamped Members’ 
Journal
ICPAS launched its 
revamped members’ 
journal at the Members’ 
Networking Night. Formerly 
known as Singapore 
Accountant, the revamped 
journal is rebranded CPA 
Singapore and boasts a 
more sophisticated design 
aesthetic and enhanced 
editorial sections. 

Strategic Partner for 
PAC 2010
ICPAS was the strategic 
partner for the Public 
Accountants Conference 
(PAC). Some 700 
participants attended the 
ACRA-organised event on 
15 July. 

AUGUST

Public Practice Programme
A new Public Practice 
Programme (PPP) for 

aspiring public accountants 
was announced on 
10 August. Designed by 
ICPAS in consultation 
with ACRA, PPP prepares 
prospective accountants for 
public practice. 

Inaugural Clarifi ed SSAs 
Seminar 
ICPAS launched the fi rst of 
its series of seminars on the 
Clarifi ed Singapore Standards 
on Auditing (SSAs) on 
16 August. The seminars are 
part of the Institute’s Clarity 
Project 2010 Roadmap.    

SEPTEMBER

Reaching Out to 
Non-Accountants
On 6 September, ICPAS 
and the Singapore Venture 
Capital and Private Equity 
Association (SVCA) 
organised a seminar on 
fi nancial reporting matters 
targeting non-accountants. 

Participants learnt about 
private equity investments, 
the role of venture 
capitalists and key fi nancial 
reporting considerations.  

Publication Highlights 
Benefi ts of External Audit 
To raise awareness of 
the benefi t of external 
audit, ICPAS partnered 
the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Australia 
(ICAA) to publish a guide 
entitled ICPAS/ICAA: The 
Benefi t of Audit. Copies 
were distributed at ICPAS 
events. 

Brand Campaign: 
CPA Singapore as Catalyst 
for Success
ICPAS launched an 
advertising campaign 
to promote the CPA 
Singapore designation. The 
campaign communicates 
the message, “Every 
success needs a catalyst. 
Accelerate/Elevate your 

career with CPA Singapore” 
by featuring prominent 
CPAs Singapore and how 
the designation is part of 
their success story.    

Fifth ICPAS Online 
Knowledge Centre 
The fi fth online knowledge 
centre to be launched by 
the Institute, the ICPAS 
Centre for Auditing and 
Assurance aims to be a 
one-stop centre on auditing 
and assurance, particularly 
in the Singapore context.  

OCTOBER

SFRS for Small Entities 
Seminar 
ICPAS organised the 
seminar “SFRS for Small 
Entities – Is it for You and 
What are the Implications 
for your Business?” on 
11 October. Members were 
informed of the salient 
features and implications 

Highlights of the Year
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of the Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standard for 
Small Entities (SFRS for 
SEs) fi nancial reporting 
framework.

FSRC Observations
Seminar
ICPAS’ Financial Statements 
Review Committee (FSRC) 
reviews audited fi nancial 
statements to provide 
feedback on areas where 
the statements fall short 
of compliance with the 
statutory requirements. 
FSRC organised a 
seminar on 13 October to 
update members on its 
observations.  

Membership Exceeds 
23,000
ICPAS membership crossed 
the 23,000th mark in 
October.

NOVEMBER

Inaugural Singapore 
Accountancy Convention  
On 2 November, more than 
1,200 participants attended 
the inaugural Singapore 
Accountancy Convention 
and Gala Dinner. ICPAS’ 
most well-attended event 
to date, the theme A 
Profession on the Move 
aptly refl ects the current 
changes and challenges 
facing the profession. 
Minister Mrs Lim Hwee Hua 
was the convention’s guest-
of-honour while ICPAS 
Adviser Mr Teo Ser Luck 
offi ciated the gala dinner. 

Financial Leadership 
Forum
ICPAS and Robert Half 
co-organised the Financial 
Leadership Forum on 
“Climbing the Financial 
Ladder – What it Takes to 
be a CFO”. Held on 

15 November, it is the 
fourth in a series of annual 
CFO forums co-organised 
by the two entities. Dr 
Ernest Kan was a panellist 
at the panel discussion. 

 
DECEMBER

Quality Assurance Forum
The “ICPAS Quality 
Assurance Forum” on 
10 December provided 
participants with 
observations from the 
PMP reviews  for non-
public interest entities, 
initiatives by the Infocomm 
Development Authority 
(IDA) to encourage 
infocomm adoption among 
SMEs, requirements of 
the Singapore Standard 
on Quality Control 1 
(SSQC 1) and its 
implications for Small and 
Medium Practitioners 
(SMPs).

SMU and ICPAS Ink MOU
On 15 December, 
ICPAS and SOAR 
inked a Memorandum 
of Understanding to 
collaborate on accounting, 
business, professional and 
thought-leadership research 
and activities. 

PA Appoints ICPAS as 
Corporate Member
On 27 December, PA 
appointed ICPAS as a 
Corporate Member. The 
Institute joins more than 
80 PA Corporate Members 
from different societal 
sectors to serve the 
community. 
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Through seminars and conventions, 
the Institute aims to develop the 
competencies of the profession, provide 
thought leadership, encourage dialogue 
and facilitate business networking. Our 
large-scale technical seminars, featuring 
experts in their respective fi elds, are 
well attended by ICPAS members and 
representatives from the regulatory and 
government agencies.   

The 
Year in
Review

Developing the 
Profession through 
Education and 
Thought 
Leadership 

FEB

MAR

MAY

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

MONTH

9

8

12

7

16

6

13 to 15

20

11

13

2

22

10

DATE

PMP Forum

Budget 2010 Seminar

IFRS for SMEs Seminar

Offi cial Launch of SIATP 

ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 1) 

ICPAS-SVCA Joint Seminar

ICPAS Public Practice Programme 

ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 2)

SFRS for SEs  Seminar

FSRC Observations Seminar

Singapore Accountancy Convention 

ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 3) 

ICPAS Quality Assurance Forum 

EVENT TITLE

In 2010, ICPAS organised the following technical events:  
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International speakers 
and panellists at the 
convention included 
representatives
from IFAC, International 
Accounting Education 
Standards Board 
(IAESB), International 
Ethics Standards Board 
for Accountants (IESBA), 
Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England 
and Wales (ICAEW) and 
Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India 
(ICAI).
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Singapore Accountancy 
Convention (SAC) 2010

Special mention must be of our inaugural 
SAC. With over 1,200 participants at the 
convention and gala dinner, it ranks as 
one of ICPAS’ largest and most successful 
events. Held at the new Marina Bay 
Sands Expo & Convention Centre on 
2 November, SAC brought together a 
distinguished lineup of speakers and 
panellists from around the world to 
discuss the theme, A Profession on the 
Move. The theme aptly depicts the 
realities of today’s world, where constant 
change and globalisation present an 
urgent need for the profession to stay 
nimble and updated.

Mrs Lim Hwee Hua, Minister in the 
Prime Minister’s Offi ce and Second 
Minister for Finance and Transport 
was the convention’s guest-of-honour, 
while ICPAS Adviser Mr Teo Ser Luck, 
Senior Parliamentary Secretary, Ministry 
of Community Development, Youth 
and Sports and Ministry of Transport, 
offi ciated the convention’s gala dinner. 

Response to the event was overwhelming. 
ICPAS had to increase the total number 
of convention places from the original 
600 to 700, and all 500 seats for the gala 
dinner were snapped up.

International speakers and panellists at 
the convention included representatives
from IFAC, International Accounting
Education Standards Board (IAESB), 
International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants (IESBA), Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales (ICAEW) and Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Local leaders in accounting and the 
business community were also present, 
including Mr Bobby Chin, Chairman of 
the Pro-Tem SAC; Mr Tan Choon Seng, 
Group CEO of WBL Corporation; 
Mr Chaly Mah, CEO of Deloitte Asia 
Pacifi c, and Mr Tham Sai Choy, Managing 
Partner of KPMG in Singapore. 



Enhancing CPE Offerings

During the year, the CPE Division 
appointed consultants from Nanyang 
Technological University (NTU) and SMU 
to develop a comprehensive training 
matrix to broaden the range of training 
programmes offered by the Institute. 

The new programmes, which included 
FRS, Audit and Tax, helped bolster the 
attendance fi gures for CPE.  Last year, 
an increase of more than 20 per cent CPE 
hours were awarded to both members 
and non-members.  
 
The CPE Division often organises large-
scale seminars on topical issues. For 
example, over 550 participants packed 
the venue for the Budget 2010 and 
Tax updates. Other signifi cant events 
last year included the China Practice 
Seminar on the Development of China’s 
Tax, and Accounting and Auditing with 
RSM Chio Lim. 

Publications and Technical 
Resources 

Relevant knowledge and updates are 
disseminated via publications such as the 
CPA Singapore journal.  Our Technical, 
Research and Practice Monitoring Divisions 
are regular contributors, providing valuable 
input, special reports and inserts on 
technical issues. We also keep our members 
in the know through guides and manuals 
like Financial Report Standard 1 (this title 
was not listed in Committees’ Review; 
suggest to replace with Clarifi ed SSAs – 
Unclear in the Past?, and Audits of Group 
Financial Statements.

ICPAS  collaborates with other accountancy 
bodies to produce technical resources. Last 
year, we worked with  ICAA to produce the 
guide ICPAS/ICAA: The Benefi t of Audit. 
Participants who had received the guide 
at various Institute-organised events have 
given it the thumbs-up for its relevance and 
clarity. Through our Practice Monitoring 
Division, the Institute collaborated with 
seven other member institutes of the IIN 
Business Members Taskforce to launch 
the Members in Business Survey, which 
looked at the key concerns of the business 
community worldwide. Results of the 
Singapore survey were published in the CPA 
Singapore journal.

The wide range of work conducted by ICPAS has certainly uplifted the 
standard of the accountancy profession in Singapore, and this augurs 
well for the goal of making Singapore a global accountancy hub. Today, 
the CPA Singapore designation is well recognised and has helped many 
accountants broaden their job scope to lead and manage effectively.

”

“
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ICPAS works closely with stakeholders 
such as ACRA and ASC, gathers 
feedback from key stakeholders and 
provides guidance through publications 
and seminars, for more effective 
implementation of standards. ICPAS’ 
Practice Monitoring Division conducts 
practice reviews on public accountants, 
under ACRA’s Practice Monitoring 
Programme, to ensure standards are 
adhered to. 

Guidance on Clarifi ed SSAs 

On 26 January 2010, ICPAS completed 
the updates to the Singapore SSAs, 
following approval by the Public 
Accountants Oversight Committee 
(PAOC) of ACRA. Mandated by IAASB, 
the Clarifi ed SSAs aim to provide 
greater clarity and enhancements to 
strengthen audit approaches and quality. 

Helping Members Succeed 
through Continuing Education

Upholding 
Standards

Mr Peter Lee, CPA Singapore
Chief Financial Offi cer  Osim International



The concerted effort of all stakeholders, including the government, businesses, professional accounting 
bodies and accounting professionals, is key to achieving the vision of transforming Singapore into a leading 
global accountancy hub for the Asia-Pacific region by 2020. As the national professional accounting body, 
ICPAS should be well-placed to contribute to the development of capabilities of the accountancy sector. 
Looking ahead, I hope to see even greater support and proactive contributions from the accounting 
fraternity to the national effort to realise this vision.

”

“
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Our Clarity Project 2010 Roadmap sets 
out ICPAS’ plans with regard to the 
SSA revisions. To help members and 
companies implement the Clarifi ed SSAs, 
ICPAS organised a series of seminars last 
year. We also conducted Technical Group 
Discussions in March, July, August and 
November on the Clarifi ed SSAs 200, 
320, 450, 505, 550 and 600 series. ICPAS 
published the article “Clarifi ed SSAs – 
Unclear in the Past?” in May, followed 
by a technical publication,  Clarifi ed SSA 
600, in July. 

Advocacy

The Institute regularly submits comment 
letters to the regulators and standard-
setters. The letters are a compilation 
of the views and insights of members 
and technical committees, and provide 
feedback on the implementation 
implications of proposed new/revised 
regulations and standards.
 

Feedback Conduit for the 
Profession

ICPAS works with ASC to organise 
focus group discussions, enabling the 
Institute to assess the implications of 
new or revised accounting standards. 
Feedback from the discussions is given to 
international standard-setting bodies such 
as the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB). 

The Institute holds regular dialogues with 
stakeholders like ACRA for accounting 
issues, the Inland Revenue Authority of 
Singapore (IRAS) for tax matters and 
Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) 
for banking and insurance issues.

Our Technical Committees similarly 
engage our members in dialogues to 
discuss issues facing the sector and 
profession. Some of the topics covered 
in 2010 were the potential changes to 
accounting for leases and the impact 
to businesses, practical issues on the 
application of FRS 40: Investment 
Property, and highlights and impact of 
the Clarifi ed SSAs.  

The Institute’s Technical Committees 
comprise the Financial Reporting 
Committee, Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Committee, Banking & 
Finance Committee, CFO Committee, 
Corporate Finance Committee, 
Corporate Governance Committee, 
Ethics Committee, Financial Statements 
Review Committee, Insolvency Practices 
Committee, Insurance Committee, Public 
Accounting Practice Committee, and 
Taxation & Levies Committee. 

Practice Monitoring

Under the direction of ACRA, our Practice 
Monitoring Division  carries out practice 
reviews on public accountants who audit 
non-public interest entities under PMP. 
Last year, the average number of PMP 
reviews  increased 10 per cent to 11 
per month. The year also marked the 
commencement of the second cycle of 
initial PMP reviews.
 
During the year, the Division also issued 
six Audit Practice Guidance papers, and 
organised two events. The PMP Forum 
in February attracted 300 participants, 
while the Quality Assurance Forum in 
December registered 200 attendees.

Mrs Lim Hwee Hua
Minister in the Prime Minister’s Offi ce and 
Second Minister for Finance and Transport
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Singapore Institute of 
Accredited Tax Professionals 

In May, ICPAS partnered the Tax Academy 
of Singapore to launch SIATP, the fi rst 
accreditation body for tax professionals in 
the country.   

SIATP aims to promote tax practice 
standards and raise the capabilities of tax 
professionals in Singapore. Accredited 
tax professionals can enjoy greater 
professional recognition and skills 
development, thereby enhancing their 
employability. They will have access to 
up-to-date industry knowledge through 
Continuing Professional Education, and 
sharpen their technical knowledge and 
competence. This will help raise overall 
standards of client servicing and tax 
compliance in Singapore, and contribute 
to the country’s position as an effi cient 
and effective business hub.

Tax professionals with the relevant 
quaifi cations can apply for the title of  
Accredited Tax Adviser, Accredited Tax 
Practitioner (ATP) or Accredited Tax 
Practitioner (Provisional). As at December 
2010, SIATP has received more than 1,700 
applications. 

ICPAS Professional 
Examination
 
The Institute offers a professional 
examination route for overseas 
accounting graduates, or graduates 
in related fi elds, to qualify as a CPA 
Singapore. Launched in 2005 and 
administered under the oversight of the 
Board of Education and Examiners, the 
ICPAS Professional Examination has since 
registered more than 1,200 candidates, 
with 116 graduates.  In 2010, the ICPAS 
Professional Examination gained further 
recognition as follows:

•  The Advanced Taxation module was 
recognised by SIATP as a relevant 
examination for the purpose of gaining 
admission as an Accredited Tax 
Practitioner; and 

•  The Advanced Taxation, Company Law 
and Corporate Governance modules 
were recognised by ICAEW as of 
comparable standards for acceptance 
as its Singapore variant examinations.  

Public Practice Programme

In August, ICPAS and ACRA’s PAOC 
launched the PPP for aspiring public 
accountants. This followed a public 
consultation exercise conducted by ACRA 
and ICPAS in April and May 2010, where 
respondents expressed positive support 
for a programme of this nature. Designed 
by ICPAS, in consultation with ACRA, 
PPP prepares CPAs Singapore to take 
on the responsibilities of public practice, 
The Programme, which commenced 
last September, is now a mandatory 
requirement for registration as a public 
accountant.

Spearheading 
Initiatives to 
Promote Industry 
Growth



Refi ning Membership 
Admission Procedures  

The Institute has been refi ning its 
processes to make it more convenient 
for eligible applicants to become 
CPAs Singapore. In 2010, to facilitate 
membership admission, the Institute 
exempted former ICPAS members who 
meet the stipulated criteria and those 
who are members by invitation from the 
Pre-Admission Course, which is otherwise 
a pre-requisite. 

The Accredited Employer Scheme, 
which facilitates provisional membership 
applications by engaging with accredited 
employers to streamline the application 
process, was expanded beyond the Big 
Four fi rms to include fi ve other CPA fi rms. 
In 2010, about 870 members joined the 
Institute under the scheme.

ICPAS Research has been driving the sector’s research efforts in various 
areas, including organising thought leadership roundtables, providing 
research funding and initiating research opportunities. These initiatives 
underscore ICPAS’ commitment to supporting relevant, timely and 
high-quality research with an Asian perspective that is useful to the 
accounting profession.

”

“

Ms Lyn Tan
Research Manager  ICPAS
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In 2010, ICPAS Research produced 
reports and articles on topics including 
accounting, advisory, business & fi nance, 
banking, regulatory frameworks, auditing 
and tax. These publications are available 
for download at the ICPAS Research 
Online Knowledge Centre. 

Through ICPAS Research, the Institute 
encourages and undertakes research 
on accounting and business topics by 
providing funding for studies on key 
issues. These priority topics are classifi ed 
under four major categories – the 
future of accounting and assurance, the 
profession’s development, key business 
issues and not-for-profi t sector.  

ICPAS Research Grant 

In June 2010, the Institute launched 
a research grant that provides initial 
funding to encourage leading global 
academics and researchers to explore 
issues and provide fresh perspectives 
on accounting topics. By December 
2010, the Research team has funded 
fi ve research contracts in the areas of 
Corporate Assets Exchange in China, 
fraud responses in Singapore, fair value 
accounting and XBRL reporting. 

ICPAS-SMU Research 
Collaboration 

ICPAS and SOAR inked an MOU in 
December to collaborate on a slew of 
research initiatives. In the pipeline is a 
CEO survey.

Promoting Accountancy Excellence 
through Research



In an increasingly globalised world, ICPAS 
recognises the importance of building our 
international network and forging strong 
relationships with our counterparts from 
other countries. The Institute is a member 
of IFAC, ASEAN Federation of Accountants, 
Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association 
and IIN. Our membership in regional and 
global organisations ensures that we can 
represent the local profession on the 
regional and international arenas, and learn 
best practices from our counterparts.

Our ties with the international network of 
accountancy bodies are further strengthened 
by mutual agreements with CPA Australia, 
ACCA, Vietnam Association of Certifi ed 
Public Accountants, Cambodia’s National 
Accounting Council, Kampuchea Institute of 
Certifi ed Public Accountants and Auditors, 
and Chinese Institute of Certifi ed Public 
Accountants. Our international alliances help 
facilitate mutual recognition of qualifi cations 
and training frameworks, and enhance 
international recognition of our CPA 
Singapore designation. 

p 

During the year, ICPAS hosted visits from the following organisations: 

Forging Strong 
Ties Globally 
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3 Feb The Association of Chartered Certifi ed Accountants
 Ms Helen Brand, Chief Executive
 Ms May Law, Director, Asia Pacifi c

12 Mar The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
 Mr Michael Spinks, President
 Mr Graham Meyer, Chief Executive Offi cer
 Mr Bill Palmer, Director, Asia

13 Apr Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, Sri Lanka
 Prof Lakshman R. Watawala, President

19 Apr The World Bank, East Asia and Pacifi c
 Ms Samia Msadek, Manager, Financial Management 

26 Apr Delegation from the Finance Bureau of Chang Shu City, China 

24 May The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
 Mr Martin Hagen, President
 Mr Mark Billington, Regional Director, South East Asia

16 Jul The National Institute of Accountants, Australia
 Ms Vicki Stylianou, General Manager, Representation and Innovation

27 Jul The Association of Chartered Certifi ed Accountants
 Ms May Law, Director, Asia Pacifi c
 Mr Darryl Wee, Singapore Country Head

6 Aug Delegation from Financial Management Training Program for 
China Construction Bank

5 Oct Delegation from Malaysian Institute of Accountants

1 Nov Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
 Mr Amarjit Chopra, President
 Mr Ravi Sankar V., President (Singapore Chapter)

4 Nov Delegation from National Institute of Professional Accountants, 
Russia

15 Nov Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
 Mr Robert Jelly, Executive Director

19 Nov The World Bank, East Asia and Pacifi c
 Ms Samia Msadek, Manager, Financial Management



25

Media Coverage

ICPAS continues to increase its media 
profi le with signifi cantly greater media 
coverage across the print, broadcast and 
online media. Key ICPAS initiatives such 
as the Pre- and Post-Budget Roundtables 
and the launch of SIATP were widely 
reported. In terms of media hits, media 
coverage jumped by more than 140 per 
cent in 2010. The fi gure is even more 
noteworthy as the media coverage in 
2009 was about double that in  2008.  

Social Media 

Attuned to the latest changes in 
communications, ICPAS embraces new 
media platforms such as Facebook, 
YouTube, Twitter, blog and Flickr to 
engage our stakeholders. The CPA 
Singapore Facebook page was launched 
in May 2010, and now has more than 
1,100 fans. We also started the CPA 
Singapore YouTube channel, and 
populated content for our Twitter and 
CPA Singapore blog. These social media 
platforms are now a regular part of our 
communications matrix, and support 
the communications strategies for the 
Institute’s key initiatives. 

Raising CPA 
Singapore’s 
Profi le through 
Communications 
and Branding 

Refreshing 
Communications 
Offerings  

Following a readership survey which 
revealed that members preferred 
to receive the bimonthly Singapore 
Accountant journal more frequently, the 
Institute began publishing the title on a 
monthly basis from January 2010. 

In July 2010, the journal was revamped. 
It was relaunched as CPA Singapore, 
complete with a brand new look and 
revised editorial content while retaining 
popular sections such as technical 
updates and personality interviews. 

Following the journal’s revamp, ICPAS 
gave its weekly e-newsletter a fresh look 
and new name. The new CPA Singapore 
Weekly sports a more streamlined 

and vibrant format, and features more 
technical updates and industry news.

 
Branding CPA Singapore 

ICPAS launched a brand campaign to 
raise the profi le of the CPA Singapore 
brand, promote CPA Singapore as the 
designation of choice, and draw talent to 
the accountancy sector. 

The brand campaign, which featured 
prominent CPAs Singapore Mr Teo Ser 
Luck and Ms Lim Kexin, communicates 
the key message, “Every success needs 
a catalyst. Accelerate/Elevate your 
career with CPA Singapore”. Mr Teo 
holds multiple public portfolios such 
as Mayor of North East District, Senior 
Parliamentary Secretary for Ministry 
of Community Development, Youth 
and Sports and Ministry of Transport, 
Member of Parliament and Chairman of 
National Youth Council. Ms Lim, a senior 
tax consultant with PwC, is an active 
community leader and youth advocate. 
The campaign brand was activated 
through a combination of outdoor and 
print advertisements, as well as social 
media platforms like Facebook and 
Twitter. 



Serving 
the Community 

As the national accountancy body 
and the largest professional body in 
Singapore, we recognise that we are 
in a position of infl uence to encourage 
the profession to make a meaningful, 
positive impact on the community. Talking 
about the importance of corporate social 
responsibility is not enough, we must 

“walk the talk”. To this end, the Institute 
organised several community events to 
inculcate active volunteerism among our 
staff and members.  

Promoting Volunteerism

In January 2010, ICPAS signed an MOU 
with PA to encourage our members 
to volunteer their skills and time with 
PA’s grassroots organisations. The 
scheme attracted the interest of about 
200 CPAs Singapore. Arising from the 
collaboration, PA appointed ICPAS as one 
of its Corporate Members in December, 
paving the way for more collaborative 
opportunities to serve the community.   

Also in January, ICPAS sponsored 
the “Volunteerism as a Way of Life” 
Forum held in celebration of the World 
Expo 2010 in Shanghai.Organised 
by MediaCorp and the World Expo 
2010 committee, the forum aimed to 
encourage volunteerism at the personal 
and corporate levels. Dr Kan was one 
of the panellists at the forum, where he 
spoke about the Institute’s tieup with 
PA, and our other Corporate Social 
Responsibility efforts. 

members in the loop about the latest 
community events and programmes, and 
provides an avenue for members to lend 
a helping hand by donating money or 
lending time and effort to help the less 
fortunate. 

Reaching out to the Next 
Generation 

We believe in nurturing the next 
generation of accounting professionals 
and inculcating an interest in accountancy 
among youths. The Institute periodically 
organises student visits to accounting 
fi rms and conducts career talks at 
secondary schools so that students 
have an  insight into the profession. In 
January 2010, the Institute embarked on 
a tutoring programme in Principles of 
Accounts for needy students. 

As with previous years, ICPAS granted 
scholarships each worth $1,500 to 
deserving students. In 2010, six 
scholarships were given to accountancy 
students from SMU and NTU.

In November 2010, 50 staff from ICPAS 
and SAA Global Education took part in 
a scheme to pack and distribute $3,000 
worth of food and household items to 
the homes of 100 low-income residents 
living in Smith Street. ICPAS also donated 
$1,000 to Yong En Care Centre, which ran 
the food distribution programme. Later 
that day, ICPAS held a charity screening 
of “Harry Potter and the Deathly 
Hallows”, which was attended by staff 
and their family and friends. The amount 
raised – about $1,000 – was presented to 
Sembawang Family Service Centre in aid 
of needy families. 

From late April to mid-May, SAA Global 
Education helped to promote the sale of 
a cookbook produced by the National 
Kidney Foundation (NKF). Proceeds 
went towards dialysis treatments and 
rehabilitative care for needy kidney 
patients at NKF. In September, the school 
held a charity bazaar in aid of Children’s 
Charity Foundation, raising $878.50 in 
one day. 

ICPAS continued its partnership with 
The Kind Exchange. Started in July 
2009 to match volunteer professionals 
with community groups in need of 
professional services, the Institute has, 
to date, successfully placed more than 
100 member volunteers with the relevant 
groups. In September 2010, ICPAS and 
The Kind Exchange inked an MOU to 
further strengthen the partnership and 
reinforce ICPAS’ commitment to serving 
the community.
 
In September 2010, ICPAS launched the 
ICPAS Serves microsite. The portal keeps 

Giving to the 
Underprivileged
 
The Institute regularly organises 
community events, providing 
opportunities for members and staff 
to serve those in need. In March, 20 
volunteers from ICPAS and Nanyang 
Business School’s Auditing & Assurance 
Team visited the residents of the Sunshine 
Welfare Action Mission (SWAMI) Home. 
The Home provides nursing care to the 
needy and sick elderly. 
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As the national professional accountancy body in Singapore, ICPAS has an instrumental role to play toward the 
realisation of the vision to transform Singapore into a leading global accountancy hub for Asia Pacifi c over the 
next 10 years. Underpinning this role is the successful repositioning of ICPAS into a professional accountancy 
body with global membership, outlook and standing. The Pro-Tem SAC welcomes ICPAS’ efforts to build up and 
strengthen its infrastructure to support the expansion in its strategic focus. I look forward to working closely with 
ICPAS to develop and promote a vibrant and thriving accountancy sector that is primed for growth opportunities 
in and beyond Singapore.

”

“

Mr Bobby Chin, FCPA Singapore
Chairman  Pro-Tem Singapore Accountancy Council

Preparing for the Future 
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Boosting the Infrastructure 

The Institute has also been intentionally 
growing our capabilities in preparation 
for growth. In 2010, we created 26 new 
positions in ICPAS and our training 
arm SAA Global Education. At ICPAS, 
a new division, the Qualifi cation and 
Programme Development Division, was 
created. The Institute’s Research and 
Technical Divisions also boosted their 
capabilities with staff additions. SAA 
Global Education expanded their teams 
for academic quality assurance, academic 
programmes, administrative support and 
information technology.

Constitution Review 

We are operating in a globalised world 
where business is  expected to be 
conducted effi ciently and expeditiously, 
regardless of geographic divide or 
distance. Consequently, many CPAs 
Singapore no longer just operate within 
the confi nes of Singapore, but take 
on regional roles with responsibility 
spanning the Asia Pacifi c and beyond.

To fulfi l our role to lead, develop and 
support the accountancy profession, 
ICPAS must assume an international 
outlook and standing. To this end, CDAS 
has recommended that ICPAS review its 
Constitution and infrastructure. We have 
embarked on an independent review of 
the Institute’s constitution, focusing on its 
governance and leadership structure and 
system.

Membership Fee Review

As a committed partner in the 
development of Singapore’s accountancy 
sector, ICPAS must take on an 
expanded role that continually invests 
in the strengthening of our members’ 
capabilities. This includes preparing 
you for a more complex environment 
of changing fi nancial reporting and 
assurance standards, as well as a 
heightened regulatory framework. 

With these developments, the Institute 
needs to have a funding mechanism that 
matches and supports the breadth and 
depth of our activities. In preparation for 
the future, ICPAS initiated a review of its 
membership subscription fees structure in 
October 2010.  



28

Committees’ Review
Accreditation Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Lim Boon Cheng  
Gerard Ee Hock Kim Pang Yang Hoong 
Khoo Ho Tong Gillian Yeo Hian Heng 
Kevin Kwok Yeoh Oon Jin 

The Committee continued to discuss issues on the Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) negotiation with the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). The Institute held a couple of meetings in Singapore with the President and 
officials from ICAI.

Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Joshua Ong Kian Guan
Yeoh Oon Jin – Dy Chairman  Premila Gowri Shankar
Shariq Barmaky  Siew Wun Mui
Chiam Yah Fang Julia Tay (Alternate: Janice Poon, Sherry Quark)
Foo See Liang – Observer from ACRA
Kuan Cheng Tuck John Teo Woon Keng (appointed on 2 June 2010)
Paul Lee Seng Meng Reggie Thein
Lim Boon Cheng Valerie Tong
Mak Keat Meng Lucas Tran Phuoc
Julie Ng (Alternate: Low Jin Kwan) Yeo Boon Chye

Following a call for nominations for public members, the re-constituted Committee had completed its work for the 
first year. The enhanced nominations process for the Committee, administered jointly by ACRA and ICPAS, serves to 
promote public confidence in the process of setting auditing standards.

The Committee reviewed the clarified Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs) and on 26 January 2010, ICPAS issued 
the final set of the clarified SSAs. This follows the approval by the Public Accountants Oversight Committee (PAOC) of 
ACRA. The clarified SSAs are based on their international equivalents, the clarified International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs), which are issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) of the International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC). The basic objectives of this international Clarity Project were to advance the process 
of global convergence and enhance the quality and uniformity of practice in audits worldwide.

During the year, the Committee initiated a series of outreach programmes for the clarified SSAs, in the form of 
publications, technical discussion groups and clarity seminars. Under the Clarity Outreach Programme, the following 
publications, technical discussion groups and seminars were released and conducted:

Publications

• Clarifi ed SSAs – Unclear in the Past? (May 2010) 

• Audits of Group Financial Statements – Key Changes and Requirements for a Group Audit (SSA 600) (July 2010)

 

Technical discussion groups

• Lessons from the Financial Crisis: Auditing in the Recovering Economy and the Implications of the Clarifi ed SSA 200,
 700, 705 & 706 (18 March 2010 ) 

• Highlights and Practical Application of Revised FRS 27, FRS 103 and Clarifi ed SSA 600 (20 July 2010)

• Highlights and Impacts of Clarifi ed SSAs 320, 450, 505 and 550 on the Audits of Your Companies (19 August 2010) 

• Highlights and Impacts of the Clarified SSA 260, New SSA 265 and Clarified SSA 540 on the Audits of Your 
 Companies (18 November 2010) 

Seminars

• ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 1): Salient Changes and the Applicability of Clarifi ed SSAs 200 Series and Insights on
 Money Laundering (16 August 2010) 

• ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 2): Salient Changes and the Applicability of Clarified SSAs 300, 400 and 600 Series, 
 Working with External Auditor (EA) from an Internal Auditor’s (IA) Perspective (20 September 2010) 
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• ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 3): Salient Changes and the Applicability of Clarified SSAs 500 Series, SSQC1 and
 Infocomm@SME –Your Next Step (22 November 2010) 

• ICPAS Clarity Seminar (Part 4): Salient Changes and the Applicability of Clarifi ed SSAs 700 and 800 series and Launch
 of ICPAS Clarity Bulletin (11 January 2011)

During the year, the Institute’s Council, on the recommendation of the Committee, approved the following:

• Final set of the clarifi ed SSAs:

 • SSA 210 Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements

 • SSA 230 Audit Documentation

 • SSA 240 The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements 

 • SSA 260 Communication with Those Charged with Governance

 • SSA 265 Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to Those Charged with Governance and Management 

 • SSA 300 Planning an Audit of Financial Statements 

 • SSA 315 Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement Through Understanding the Entity and  
  Its Environment 

 • SSA 330 The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks

 • SSA 402 Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Service Organisation 

 • SSA 510 Initial Audit Engagements – Opening Balances

 • SSA 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures

 • SSA 560 Subsequent Events

 • SSA 580 Written Representations

 • SSA 600 Special Considerations – Audits of Group Financial Statements
  (Including the Work of Component Auditors)  

 • SSA 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements 

 • SSA 705 Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report

 • SSA 706 Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report

 • SSA 710 Comparative Information – Corresponding Figures and Comparative Financial Statements 

 • SSA 720 The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Other Information in Documents Containing Audited  
  Financial Statements 

 • SSA 800 Special Considerations – Audits of Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with Special
  Purpose Frameworks 

 • SSA 805 Special Considerations – Audits of Single Financial Statements and Specific Elements, Accounts or  
  Items of a Financial Statement 

 • SSA 810 Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements

 • Glossary of Terms

• Withdrawal of Audit Guidance Statement (AGS) 3 Microfi lm Records and Their Audit Implications

As of 31 December 2010, the Committee was considering issues in relation to proposed new or revised auditing 
pronouncements on the following matters:

• Sample Auditor’s Report

• Audit of Listed Companies

During the year, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the approval of the Council, provided its 
comments on various exposure drafts issued by the IAASB of IFAC.  

ACRA is responsible for the control and regulation of the practice of the profession of accountancy by public accountants 
and accounting entities. The PAOC is responsible for assisting ACRA in the discharge of this duty. ACRA adopts the 
standards issued by ICPAS and in doing so undertakes oversight of the process followed by ICPAS in developing and 
issuing the standards. 

The objective of the PAOC’s oversight over the Committee is to ensure that the development of the auditing standards, 
to be adopted by ACRA, is robust and credible and promotes public confidence in the process of setting auditing 
standards.
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Banking & Finance Committee
Chua Kim Chiu – Chairman Dominic Nixon 
Cheng Ai Phing – Dy Chairperson Ong Ai Boon 
Prakesh Ambelal Desai  Ong Siew Mooi (appointed on 21 September 2010)
Lee Sze Yeng (appointed on 20 July 2010) Brian Thung Hock Lai (appointed on 21 May 2010)
Lee Wai Fai  Wilson Woo Siew Wah
Leong Kok Keong Yap Chee Meng (completed term on 20 July 2010)
Judy Ng May Lian (until 12 September 2010)

The Committee for the 2010/11 term held two meetings on 9 July 2010 and 7 October 2010. Discussions during the meetings 
revolved around the terms of reference, size and composition of the Committee, agreed upon procedures, reports for 
the fi nancial sector development fund, restatement of distribution per unit fi gures after a rights issue and revisions to the 
Recommended Accounting Practice (RAP) 7 Framework for Unit Trusts.

The Committee also discussed the following Exposure Drafts (EDs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB): 

Exposure Drafts
• ED Financial Instruments: Amortised Cost and Impairment; and
• ED Fair Value Option for Financial Liabilities.

In its continual efforts to engage the relevant authorities to increase knowledge sharing of updates in accounting standards 
and resolve issues impacting the banking and fi nance industry, the Committee had a dialogue session on 20 October 2010 
with the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) on the following matters:

• Collective Impairment Assessment Under MAS Notice to Banks 612 and MAS Notice to Merchant Banks 1005; 
• Merchant Banks- Implementation of BASEL II and Continuation of the Asset Maintenance Ratio; 
• BASEL III and the Intention for Adoption for Singapore Incorporated Banks; 
• Revisions to RAP 7 Framework for Unit Trusts; 
• Impact of Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standard 9 Financial Instruments; and
• Increasing knowledge sharing and collaboration.

Board of Education and Examiners
Gillian Yeo Hian Heng – Chairperson Lian Wee Cheow 
Cheung Pui Yuen Pang Yang Hoong 
Chew Tong Gunn

The Committee continues to fi ne-tune the examination administration policies for the ICPAS Professional Examination (PE), 
to ensure that the examination maintains its quality and standard for overseas accounting and other relevant graduates to 
qualify as Certifi ed Public Accountants in Singapore (CPA Singapore).   

The Board members have played a signifi cant role in ensuring relevance and quality of ICPAS PE by improving guidelines on 
quality checks for examinations and proposing software to counter plagiarism of project work. 

The BOEE has resolved critical issues such as sourcing of marker for Corporate and Business Strategy (CBS) November 
2010 Module Examination. It has also approved the new examiner for Advanced Taxation module and endorsed on the 
recommendation of new trainer for CBS Preparatory Course conducted by SAA-GE.   

In 2010, 257 new applications have been assessed and approved. The committee also reviewed the list of new qualifi cations 
and provided constructive feedback to improve the assessment guidelines for admission to ICPAS PE.   

During the reporting period, the prestigious Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) evaluated and 
recognised the Advanced Taxation (ATX) and the Company Law and Corporate Governance (LCG) modules of the ICPAS PE 
to be their Singapore variant papers. ICAEW students who have passed the ICPAS PE ATX and LCG modules examination will 
be awarded credits for Principles of Taxation, Taxation and Law of the ICAEW Associate Chartered Accountants qualifi cation. 
In addition, our ICPAS PE ATX module has also been recognised by the Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals 
(SIATP) as a relevant examination for the purpose of gaining admission as an Accredited Tax Practitioner.  

In view of the development of a new Singapore post-university professional accountancy programme, as announced by the 
Government’s Committee to Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) in April 2010, the Board also commenced to consider 
implications on the ICPAS PE in due course.
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CFO Committee
Soh Gim Teik – Chairman Lai Chin Yee
Chia Nam Toon Loo Wen Lieh
Chow Kam Wing Jeann Low Ngiap Jong
Jong Voon Hoo Wong Lai Ping 
 
The Committee welcomed three new members, Mr Chia Nam Toon, Ms Jeann Low Ngiap Jong and Ms Wong Lai Ping into 
the team. The Committee had organised and participated in the developments of Chief Financial Offi cers (CFOs), Financial 
Controllers and Finance Directors etc. through conferences, workshops, roundtable discussions and networking sessions to 
provide for the professional needs of ICPAS members. 

On 2 November 2010, the Committee participated in the inaugural event, “Singapore Accountancy Convention 2010: A 
Profession on the Move” organised by ICPAS. In the conference, emerging issues of the 21st century in the areas of ethics, 
corporate governance, accounting and auditing standards, regulations which impacted CFOs and Financial Controllers were 
discussed. 

Additionally, through the ICPAS Secretariat, members of the Committee had regularly submitted feedback to the Institute on 
matters affecting professional accountants in commerce and industry. These included providing feedback via the Institute (as 
well as individually) on various whitepapers that were put out by the various governmental regulatory bodies. 

The Chairman of the Committee represented ICPAS as a committee member and served on IFAC’s Professional Accountants 
in Business (PAIB) since 2008. His three-year term ended on 31 December 2010. 

The Committee recognises the increasing demands faced by the profession. To this end, it endeavours to continuously work 
towards serving the needs of its members. 

Community, Social & Sports Advisory Panel
Yeo Ek Khuan – Chairman Loo Wen Lieh 
Michael Heng Yeow Meng Alvin Phua Chun Yen 
Ho Nai Chuen David Phua Puay Heng
Helen Lee Lai Ken Wong Lai Yong 
Jacqueline Lew Wan Ming Micolle Yeo Siew Huay
Lo Wei Min  Yim Kam May

The following events and activities were organised in 2010: 

Chinese New Year Cooking Workshop 
Thirty-three members attended the Chinese New Year Cooking Workshop held on 29 January 2010.
 
In the two-hour demonstration, three scrumptious Chinese New Year dishes were made with ingredients easily available in 
the market. At end of the workshop, the participants are ready and eager to display their culinary skills during the coming 
Chinese New Year. 

Understanding Healthy Relationships & Achieving Financial Freedom 
During the talk, the speaker shared how men and women think differently about fi nance. By understanding their style of 
managing fi nances and investing, they are able to complement their partner in fi nancial matters. 

Let Your Hair Speak Volumes For You
On 6 May 2010, members attended the “Let Your Hair Speak Volumes For You” workshop. Besides learning how to create the 
different looks for different occasions, members also gained a better understanding of hair and scalp condition. 

Movie Screenings
The Committee organised two movie events during the year with an average attendance of 60 members.  

The two movies shown were Toy Story 3 on 19 June 2010 and Wall Street 2–Money Never Sleeps on 23 September 2010. 

Community Service 
On 18 July 2010, the elderly from Geylang East Home for the Aged were treated to a morning of performances to 
celebrate Racial Harmony Day.  

The programme included band performances, traditional dances, lucky draw and a sumptuous buffet lunch.
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Speechcraft 2010 by CPA Toastmasters
CPA Toastmasters Club organised the “Speechcraft 2010” workshop on 6, 13, 20 & 27 July 2010. The 4 part series programme 
aimed to help members build effective public speaking and presentation skills.

CPA Games 
The CPA Games 2010 came to a close at Azzura Beach Club at Sentosa, leaving behind some wonderful sporting memories. 
It was held on 20 November and ICPAS President, Dr Ernest Kan, was the guest-of-honour for the evening fi lled with fun, 
friends and numerous awards. 

This year’s CPA Games saw the introduction of two new games, Beach Volleyball and Darts. In total, 19 games were played 
throughout the season and team entries came to an all time high this year with close to 200 teams. In his welcome address, 
Mr Yeo Ek Khuan, Chairman of Community, Social & Sports Advisory Panel expressed his heartfelt thanks to all the conveners 
and captains for their dedication and effi ciency.  

Dr Kan, on the other hand, stressed the importance of work-life balance. He also spoke passionately about the spirit of 
sportsmanship and the Olympic values of Excellence, Friendship and Respect which represented the CPA Games.  

In a surprise ending to the CPA Games this year, there was a tie for the overall Championship title between KPMG and PwC.

Inter-Professional Games
ICPAS is once again the overall champion for the Inter-Profession Games 2010 for the fourth consecutive year. The award 
presentation and closing ceremony was held on 27 November 2010 at Kent Ridge Guild House. ICPAS participated in 10 
sports and showed its mettle by topping 5 of them – basketball, golf, pool, squash and table tennis.

Corporate Finance Committee
Chaly Mah – Chairman  Tan Chian Khong
Ho Kim Wai (appointed on 20 July 2010) Tham Tuck Seng
Lee Sze Yeng (appointed on 21 May 2010) Raymond Tong (until 3 November 2010)
Mah Kah Loon  Wong Kian Kok
 
The Committee considers issues relating to corporate fi nance matters, typically by discussing and providing input on matters 
relating to corporate fi nance to the regulatory authorities and other corporate fi nance/investment banking organisations, and 
works closely with other committees within the Institute on matters pertaining to accounting and auditing standards and to 
provide input on professional issues to the standards setters. 

During the year, the Committee reviewed comments received from ACRA and MAS on the revision to Statement of Auditing 
Practice (SAP) 24 “Auditors and Public Offering Documents”. The Committee also deliberated on the draft Audit Guidance 
Statement (AGS) on Comfort Letters. The Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the approval of the 
Council, provided its comments on the following Exposure Drafts and Consultation Papers during the year: 

• SGX Consultation Paper on the proposed revisions to mainboard admission criteria and introduction of SPAC; 
• MAS Draft Regulations Pursuant to The Securities and Futures Act; and
• International Standards on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3420 Assurance Reports on the Process to Compile
 Pro Forma Financial Information Included in a Prospectus.

The other main focus areas of initiatives going forward include strengthening the close linkages that ICPAS has with the 
regulators through dialogues on industry trends, issuance of articles on topical corporate fi nance issues, and engaging the 
constituent members of ICPAS who specialise in corporate fi nance. 

Corporate Governance Committee
Gerard Ee Hock Kim – Chairman Rohan Kamis 
Bill Bowman  Lee Kin Wai 
R. Dhinakaran  Steven Phan Swee Kim
Ho Yew Kee  Tom Yee Lat Shing

The Committee utilised the expertise of its members as auditor practitioners, accountants, consultants, company directors, 
chief executive directors and university professors, drawing on their broad experience to raise awareness of corporate 
governance issues as well as to promote fairness, transparency and accountability in the conduct of business.
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In October, the Committee provided its comments on the SGX’s Policy Statement on Sustainability Reporting and Proposed 
Guide, which describes sustainability reporting and sets out broad principles to guide issuers in formulating their sustainability 
reporting frameworks.   

The Committee acknowledges the importance of its role in the development, implementation and promotion of sound 
corporate governance and will continue to participate actively in projects associated with its objectives. The Committee will 
look towards organising relevant seminars, talks, forums and dialogues on corporate governance.

CPA Singapore Editorial Advisory Panel
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman  Alfred Shee Ping Fatt 
Lee Su Shyan – Dy Chairperson Sitoh Yih Pin 
Tan Hun Tong – Dy Chairman Tan Boen Eng 
Cheng Nam Sang  Anna Teo 
Stuart Pallister 

2010 saw the introduction of new panel members into the CPA Singapore Editorial Advisory Panel – namely, Prof Cheng Nam 
Sang, Associate Professor of Accounting (Practice), Singapore Management University; Mr Stuart Pallister, Associate Director, 
Business Media Relations and Managing Editor, INSEAD Knowledge at INSEAD and Ms Anna Teo, Senior Correspondent, 
Business Times. The injection of new blood was benefi cial for bringing about fresh ideas and different perspectives on the 
journal.  

The advisory panel played a signifi cant role in the revamp of ICPAS’ publication, formerly known as Singapore Accountant.  
Panel members provided valuable feedback on the journal, renamed CPA Singapore and launched in July 2010. Besides 
a new masthead, CPA Singapore journal has a more sophisticated design aesthetic and revamped editorial sections. It 
carries more in-depth feature stories and a new lifestyle segment while retaining popular sections on technical updates and 
personality interviews. The journal has also been resized to a more compact format, making it more convenient for busy 
professionals to carry and read on the go. 

Panel members subsequently met for a review of the changes, and had generally positive feedback on the revamped 
journal. The panel also discussed ideas on increasing the journal’s reach by expanding its distribution channels beyond ICPAS 
members, as well as ways to increase advertising revenue for the publication.   

While CPA Singapore journal remains the main communication tool for the Institute to reach out to members, the panel also 
envisions the journal to be a valuable resource for the accounting and business community. It seeks to continually raise the 
bar in making improvements to the journal’s editorial content and aesthetic design.  

In January 2011, a readership survey on the journal was carried out and the survey results will form the basis for proposed 
refi nements to the journal.  

Disciplinary Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Sitoh Yih Pin 
Kon Yin Tong  Tom Yee Lat Shing
R. Dhinakaran  Gillian Yeo Hian Heng
Steven Phan Swee Kim

The Committee dealt with two cases against non-practising members submitted by the Investigation Committee. One 
member was removed from the Institute’s register while the other was given a warning letter.

Ethics Committee
Gerard Ee Hock Kim – Chairman Quek Shi Kui
Don Ho Mun-Tuke – Dy Chairman  Daniel Soh Chung Hian 
Anthony Cheong Fook Seng  Phillip Yuen Ewe Jin 
Jeann Low Ngiap Jong
 
The objective of the Committee is to raise ethical awareness among practitioners, and to deal with matters pertaining to the 
Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics and other ethical requirements. 
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During the year the Committee looked into developing and conducting an online ethics quiz for practitioners to self-update 
and to assess their level of knowledge on the topic of ethics. The Committee engaged the Vice President of ICAEW, Mark 
Spofforth, to be part of the panellists for the ethics and governance segment at the Singapore Accountancy Convention 2010 
organised by ICPAS in November 2010. 

The main focus areas of initiatives of the Committee include raising awareness of the new ethics code and enhanced 
communication on ethical matters. These could be achieved via CPE sessions and featuring case studies in publications 
going forward.

Examination Committee
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Philip Lee Jee Cheng
Chee Hay Kheong Lim Boon Cheng
Ho Yew Kee Lim Lian Soon
 
The Examination Committee continued to oversee the overall function of the ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination Scheme for its 
ACCA Professional Entry Route (PER) and Certifi ed Accounting Technician (CAT) qualifi cations. 

The new Foundations in Accountancy (FIA) commenced in January 2011 as a supplement to the CAT programme with 
multiple certifi cations and no specifi c entry points. The fi rst examination assessment for FIA will be the December 2011 
examination session.   

With the release of the new FIA, all local institutions were invited for exemptions reassessment of their local qualifi cations 
against the FIA syllabus. Aside from FIA, there were also minor updates to the ACCA syllabi, papers and examination 
structure. These updates will take effect from the June 2011 examination session. 

The Examination Committee maintained a close working relationship with the Singapore examination team to analyse 
feedback and propose recommendations to ACCA on various solutions to improve work processes.  

The Committee also carried on approving both the appointments and re-appointments of examiners, assessors and inspectors 
for the Singapore variant and adapted papers. 

Executive Committee
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Khoo Ho Tong
Gerard Ee Hock Kim Tan Boen Eng 
Steven Phan Swee Kim
 
The Executive Committee (EXCO) is responsible, on behalf of the Council, for all matters relating to the development of 
broad policies and strategies and exercises a general oversight of the work programmes and initiatives of the Institute in 
order to fulfi ll its mission to lead, support and develop the accountancy profession. 

During the year, the EXCO continued to focus on capabilities development to build a resolute and responsive ICPAS that 
would be catalytic in building a vibrant accountancy sector to support the nation’s economic blueprint. To that end, ICPAS has 
expanded its staff strength from 114 in 2009 to 129 in 2010 and currently has 20 CPAs Singapore contributing their technical 
expertise in the various key divisions of the Institute.  

In April 2010, CDAS issued its Final Report to the Minister for Finance, charting a 2020 vision with 10 key recommendations to 
transform Singapore, over the next decade, into a leading global accountancy hub serving the Asia Pacifi c region. The Final 
Report and the recommendations therein have been accepted by the Minister for Finance. One of the recommendations calls 
for the development of a Singapore-branded professional accountancy qualifi cation programme (QP), to be administered 
by ICPAS, with oversight by the Pro-Tem Singapore Accountancy Council (Pro-Tem SAC). The EXCO appointed the former 
executive director of the professional accountancy body in Hong Kong to head the Institute’s Qualifi cation and Programme 
Development Division, and provided direction, guidance and input to the ICPAS team that works closely with the secretariat 
of the Pro-Tem SAC towards the development of the qualifi cation programme.    

Another key recommendation in the CDAS report calls for the transformation of ICPAS into a professional accountancy body 
with global membership, outlook and standing. To achieve this goal, ICPAS will undertake a comprehensive independent 
study of the ICPAS Constitution to ensure its relevance and alignment with ICPAS’ mission as the national professional body 
and that the ensuing governance and leadership structure and system are consistent with that of a professional accountancy 
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body with a global membership, outlook and standing. The EXCO deliberated on the approach, review plan and framework 
pertaining to the review of the Constitution before making recommendations to Council. The plan included the engagement of 
the services of an external consultancy fi rm to facilitate one-on-one interviews and focus group sessions with key stakeholders. 
As at December, nine sessions were held with relevant regulatory agencies and various groupings of ICPAS members to 
gather feedback and views on the current ICPAS Constitution and the changes needed for ICPAS to become a professional 
body with global membership, outlook and standing. The feedback and suggestions received from these sessions have been 
very useful and would be taken into consideration during the review. More sessions are being slated in the fi rst half of 2011.   

Arising from the CDAS recommendations to develop the accountancy profession in Singapore, the Institute is expected to 
take on a broader role in terms of infrastructure, capacity and capabilities building and enhanced services to members, which 
would have an impact on the Institute’s operating costs. As such, the EXCO initiated a review of the membership fees which 
have not been adjusted for the last 25 years.  

The EXCO provided input in the selection of the brand agency and reviewed the brand campaign to promote CPA Singapore 
as a catalyst for success and to attract talent into the accountancy sector through profi ling of key ICPAS members. The 
campaign was fronted by two brand ambassadors who are ICPAS members – ICPAS Adviser, Mr Teo Ser Luck and Ms Lim 
Kexin, senior tax consultant at PwC, community leader and youth associate.   

On the national and international front, the Committee continued to deepen relations with relevant agencies and accountancy 
bodies. ICPAS signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the People’s Association (PA) to encourage ICPAS members to 
volunteer with PA’s 2000 Grassroots Organisation (GRO). The objective is to encourage ICPAS members to contribute their 
skills in aid of the community, while the GROs will benefi t by having professional expertise to oversee their fi nances. To date, 
close to 200 ICPAS members have indicated their interest in this scheme. In view of its collaboration with PA, the Institute 
was incorporated as a PA Corporate Member in December. The Institute continued to assist in facilitating the placement of 
students from the Chinese Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants (CICPA) with CPA fi rms in Singapore.  

Where relevant, the EXCO provided input and direction in respect of the work of the other committees of the Institute.

The EXCO also has oversight over operational matters such as the annual budget and other fi nancial matters, internal 
audit, IT development expenditure, staff salary adjustments and promotion exercise and the award of ICPAS medals to 
deserving members who have made signifi cant contributions to the Institute as well as the ICPAS Scholarship to accountancy 
undergraduates from NTU and SMU.

Financial Reporting Committee
(Formerly known as Accounting Standards Committee)
Tham Sai Choy – Chairman  Ng Eng Juan
Sajjad Akhtar Ng Joo Khin (appointed on 2 June 2010)
Shariq Barmaky  Nagaraj Sivaram
Boon Yoon Chiang  Tan Boon Siong
Foong Daw Ching  Pearl Tan Hock Neo
Goh Ann Nee (until 20 July 2010) Henry Tan Song Kok
Kok Moi Lre  Martina Wong Yoke Lin
Kon Yin Tong  Yeo Ek Khuan
Tony Mallek (appointed on 2 June 2010)

The Accounting Standards Committee was renamed the Financial Reporting Committee (FRC) in June 2010 to refl ect its 
relevance to the Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs). The Committee appointed for the 2010/11 term held two meetings on 
2 July 2010 and 19 November 2010. 

The Committee continued to work closely with ASC in reviewing new accounting proposals and proposed FRSs. Discussions 
on implementation issues were conducted extensively with the ASC. Currently, the FRSs are almost entirely in convergence 
with the IFRSs and International Accounting Standards (IASs) issued by the IASB.

[1] The Core Sub-Committee
The Core Sub-Committee is chaired by Mr Tham Sai Choy. During the 2010/11 term, the Core Sub-Committee held 4 meetings 
on 5 May 2010, 16 July 2010, 13 August 2010 and 7 October 2010.  

During the term, the following Singapore Financial Reporting Standard (SFRS), Interpretation to FRS (INT FRS) and amendment 
to FRS, were issued by the ASC, subsequent to the Institute’s comments, in chronological order:
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• SFRS for Small Entities;
• INT FRS 115 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, with an Accompanying Note; and 
• Amendment to FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Limited Exemption from Comparative Disclosures for
 First-time Adopters.

During the year, the Institute’s Council, on the recommendation of the Core Sub-Committee, approved the following:

Recommended Accounting Practice (RAP)
• Amendment to RAP 11 Pre-Completion Contracts for the Sale of Development Property

During the term, the Core Sub-Committee discussed and issued comment letters on the following Exposure Drafts (ED) 
issued by the IASB and ASC:

Exposure Drafts Issued by the IASB
(Chronological order, according to date of issuance of comment letter to IASB)

• ED Leases;
• ED Insurance Contracts;
• ED Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (Proposed Amendments to IAS 12);
• ED Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
• ED Measurement Uncertainty Analysis Disclosure for Fair Value Measurements;
• ED Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Proposed Amendments to IAS 1);
• ED Fair Value Option for Financial Liabilities;
• ED Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, The Reporting Entity;
• ED Financial Instruments: Amortised Cost and Impairment; and
• ED Measurement of Liabilities in IAS 37 (Proposed Amendments to IAS 37).

Exposure Draft Issued by the ASC
• ED Charities Accounting Standard

As of 31 December 2010, the Core Sub-Committee was considering issues in relation to proposed new pronouncements on 
the following matters: 

Exposure Draft Issued by the IASB
• ED Hedge Accounting
 
[2] The Education Sub-Committee
The Education Sub-Committee is chaired by Mr Henry Tan Song Kok. During the 2010/11 term, the Education Sub-Committee 
held 5 meetings on 6 April 2010, 12 April 2010, 8 July 2010, 14 October 2010 and 6 January 2011. The Education Sub-
Committee’s objective is to educate non-accounting trained stakeholders using various platforms such as seminars, articles, 
media and publications.

During the year, the Education Sub-Committee has been actively engaging with other agencies like the Singapore Venture 
Capital & Private Equity Association (SVCA), Singapore Business Federation (SBF), Singapore International Chamber of 
Commerce (SICC), Association of Small and Medium Enterprises (ASME), Ministry of Community Development, Youth and 
Sports (MCYS), and Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA). The following were the seminars conducted: 

Seminars
• An introduction to private equity investments, the role that venture capitalists play, and some key fi nancial reporting
 considerations (6 September 2010) 
• SFRS for Small Entities: Is it for you and what are the implications to your business? (11 October 2010)

[3] The Focus Group Sub-Committee
The Chairman of the Focus Group Sub-Committee is Mr Sajjad Akhtar. The Focus Group Sub-Committee was set up to obtain 
feedback from members and other stakeholders through focus groups pertaining to specifi c accounting issues arising from 
accounting pronouncements or from the lack of guidance.  

During the term, the Focus Group Sub-Committee helped facilitate the formation of a joint ASC-ICPAS Working Group 
on Insurance Related Projects. The ASC-ICPAS Working Group held three meetings on 14 September 2010, 11 October 
2010 and 25 October 2010 to study and provide views for the Exposure Draft on Insurance Contracts issued by the IASB. A 
comment letter was subsequently submitted by the ASC-ICPAS Working Group to IASB in December 2010.
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The Focus Group Sub-Committee considered the formation of focus groups for the various pronouncements, for example 
the ED on Extractive Activities. However, as the topic did not impact Singapore signifi cantly, the focus group was eventually 
not set up.  

Moving forward, the Focus Group Sub-Committee plans to build a closer collaboration with the ASC. Based on IASB’ 
work plan, the Focus Group Sub-Committee will formulate a list of upcoming accounting pronouncements and arrange for 
joint focus groups to be set up, where networks and resources are pooled from the relevant stakeholder groups. This will 
strengthen the robustness of the discussions and better address the accounting issues that may arise. 

Financial Statements Review Committee
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson Lee Eng Kian
Ravinthran Arumugam Philip Ling Soo Hwa
Rick Chan Hock Leong Poon Yew Wah 
Robin Chin Sin Beng Douglas Tan Kay Yeow
Chris Choo Chai Leong Tan Swee Ho
Choo Eng Beng Tan Tong Kai
Eng Chin Chin Teo Chai Choo
Goh Swee Hong Tham Chee Soon
Ho Kok Yong Tiang Yii
Jeremy Hoon Ching Sing Joseph Toh Kian Leong
Michael Kee Cheng Kong Wong-Yeo Siew Eng
Kok Moi Lre Woo E-Sah
David Anthony Leaver Yeo Ek Khuan 
Leong Kok Keong Yeo Boon Chye

During the year, 124 sets of fi nancial statements (82 listed, including newly listed companies and 42 private limited 
companies) were distributed for review. The FSRC’s industry focus for the current year is real estate, manufacturing and 
trading, commodities, oil and gas, telecommunications and transport, shipping and shipbuilding, fi nance institutions, stock-
broking and insurance.  

These fi nancial statements were reviewed by members working under six sub-committees as follows: 

Sub-Committee Chairperson  
1 Kok Moi Lre 
2 David Anthony Leaver
3 Tan Swee Ho
4 Goh Swee Hong 
5 Yeo Boon Chye
6 Joseph Toh Kian Leong 

In the course of its reviews, the Committee highlighted to practising members areas where the presentation or content 
of the fi nancial statements fall short of compliance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (SFRS) and other 
promulgations. Generally the standard of disclosure in the fi nancial statements has improved. However, it was noted that 
for certain sets of fi nancial statements reviewed, a few practising members were found to be not conversant with new and 
revised SFRS and the Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSA). These practising members were recommended to attend 
training courses to update themselves on the Standards.

Two practising members who were found wanting in the discharge of their professional duties were subsequently referred 
to the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) for further action. In view of the substantial changes to the 
SFRS ahead, members are advised to continuously keep abreast of such changes and take necessary action to manage these 
changes.

On 13 October 2010, the Committee conducted a half-day seminar on observations compiled from its reviews over the 
past 12 months on fi nancial statements for fi nancial periods ended in 2008 and fi rst quarter of 2009. Most of the speakers 
were members of the FSRC. The top 10 fi ndings were presented during this seminar and other topics of interest presented, 
including (a) statement of comprehensive income with reference to the revised FRS 1, (b) recognition of revenue from 
viewpoints of a principal and an agent, (c) practical guidance on impairment measurement and (d) fi nancial instruments - the 
disclosure of three levels of fair value hierarchy which is a new disclosure requirement. The seminar was attended by over 400 
participants from accounting fi rms, the statutory boards and members from various industries. 
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Information Technology Services Advisory Panel
Tang Kok Kwai – Chairman  Thio Tse Gan 
Lee Jeng Wah – Dy Chairman  Tung Lai Lai
John Chin Chen Keong  Yoong Ee Chuan
Themin Suwardy

At its inaugural meeting, the committee set out the following plans to enhance members knowledge of IT by: 
• Arranging IT relevant courses to be held under the Institute’s CPE Programmes 
• Arranging for insightful articles on IT to be published in the Institute’s monthly CPA Singapore journal.

Implementation of school management system (SMS)
Work started since July 2009 and has been in progress for the implementation of a new school management system to 
support the administration and management of operations of SAA Global Education. The targeted “go live” date has been 
moved from 3rd quarter 2010 to 3rd quarter of 2011 due to the Variation Order arising from the separation of the entities as 
a result of the EduTrust.

Implementation of New Enterprise System (NES)
Existing business processes were reviewed and streamlined with industry best practices incorporated where appropriate. 
Work had started since Nov 2009 and has been in progress for the implementation of a new enterprise system comprising 
three components – ICPAS Members’ Portal, Customer Relationship Management (CRM) System and Events Management 
System. However, instead of the original plan in 2009 to seamlessly integrate with the Finance system, it will be a simple 
daily transaction log fi le transfer between the NES and Finance system. The targeted “go live” date has been moved from 
3rd quarter of 2010 to 2nd quarter of 2011 in order to incorporate additional system enhancements that have arisen during 
the Functional Specifi cations phase.

Revamp of ICPAS Corporate Website and Launch of new Microsites
Two ICPAS microsites, namely CPE and Membership and the revamped ICPAS Corporate Website were developed and will 
be launched in 2nd quarter of 2011.

Insolvency Practices Committee
Don Ho Mun-Tuke – Chairman Leow Quek Shiong (appointed on 2 June 2010)
Tam Chee Chong – Dy Chairman Neo Ban Chuan 
Aw Eng Hai  Seshadri Rajagopalan 
Chan Yee Hong (appointed on 2 June 2010) Timothy James Reid 
Peter Chay Fook Yuen (resigned 20 July 2010) Nicky Tan Ng Kuang 
Chee Yoh Chuang  Tay Swee Sze
Victor Goh Yeow Kiang Bob Yap (appointed on 20 July 2010)

During the year, members continued to emphasise the importance of increasing the awareness of insolvency practitioners 
on training and technical competency. In collaboration with the SAA Global Education, Continuing Professional Education 
programmes on various subjects in insolvency were conducted.   

Several committee members have actively devoted time and effort in the group discussion with Insolvency & Public Trustees 
Offi ce to give their valuable insights on the proposed insolvency legislative changes. Three members also served and 
contributed their professional expertise on the Board of Directors of Insolvency Practitioners Association of Singapore.  

An Ad Hoc Guidelines Committee is currently studying and will be drafting recommended Practice Guidelines for Insolvency 
Practitioners. In view of the CDAS recommendations and the imminent completion of the Omnibus Act, the Practice Guidelines 
will serve to benchmark the standards of practitioners to the best in the industry for the benefi t of the insolvency industry.

Insurance Committee
Mak Keat Meng – Chairman Khoo Kah Siang
Sim Hwee Cher – Dy Chairman Philip Tan Eng Seong 
Paul Faulkner Tom Yee Lat Shing 
Jeremy Hoon Ching Sing Kenny Horlley Young
 
The Committee continues to participate actively and contribute positively to the insurance industry by providing feedback 
and recommendations on various matters to insurance bodies and regulators, whilst handling issues raised by members. 
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During the year, the Committee deliberated and submitted comments on the following to the Insurance Department of the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS): 

• Consultation Paper on Proposed Framework for Reinsurance Management (July 2010);

• Proposed Audit Report on Terminated/Matured ILP (November 2010); 

• Proposed Changes to Wordings of MAS Notice 319; and 

• MAS Proposed Amendments to the Statutory Forms for Participating Fund Returns (December 2010).

The Committee had a meeting on 16 November 2010 as part of the Annual Dialogue Session between MAS and the Insurance 
Committee.  

Investigation Committee
Gerard Ee Hock Kim – Chairman Ong Sim Ho
Khoo Ho Tong Nagaraj Sivaram
Lee Chow Soon – Lay Person Kelvin Tan Wee Peng
 
During the year, the Committee dealt with two cases against non-practising members, both of which were referred to the 
Disciplinary Committee, with the recommendation that one member be removed from the register of members and the other 
be given a warning letter.   

Investigation into a third case will commence in early 2011. 

Membership Committee
Khoo Ho Tong – Chairman  Yang Ching Chao
Yeoh Oon Jin – Dy Chairman  Tom Yee Lat Shing  
Khoo Teng Aun  Wong Lai Yong 

A strong membership growth was witnessed in the year under review, total membership increased by 8.5% in 2010 and the 
Institute’s membership surpassed the 22,000th mark in May 2010 and again broke the 23,000th mark in October 2010.  

During the year, the Committee has endorsed and lent its support to the following initiatives to further strengthen the 
membership core and drive membership growth.   

Exemption of Pre-Admission Course 
In July, the Membership Committee recommended to the ICPAS Council the exemption of Pre-Admission Course for 
specifi c identifi ed group of members (former members and members by invitation) who meet stipulated exemption criteria.  
The objective of the exemption is to facilitate the re-admission of former members who wish to return into membership 
and admission of members by invitation. This is in support of the Institute’s AIM’s strategic intent coupled with CDAS 
recommendations in creating a vibrant accounting hub in Singapore with ICPAS playing a key role.

Expansion of Accredited Employer Scheme (AES) 
The Institute’s Member Services Division continues to actively engage the Big 4 and CPA fi rms to build relationship and 
provide support in membership related matters. Continuing the success of the AES among the Big 4, another 5 new CPA 
fi rms (BDO LLP, Foo Kon Tan Grant Thorton LLP, Nexia TS Public Accounting Corporation, Ng Lee & Associates - DFK and 
RSM Chio Lim LLP) joined the AES in October. For the whole year of 2010, more than 870 members joined the Institute via 
AES.    

Promotion of CPA Singapore to Provisional Members 
As part of the efforts to encourage the Provisional Members to attain full membership, the Member Services Division took a 
pro-active approach to reach out to Provisional members and encourage them to reclassify to full membership upon passing 
the Pre-Admission Course (PAC). Briefi ng was conducted at every PAC, covering the reclassifi cation criteria and application 
procedure. A follow up email invite was sent to members who passed the PAC.   
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Public Accounting Practice Committee
Lim Boon Cheng – Chairman Lim Yeong Seng 
Lisa Liew – Dy Chairperson Luar Eng Hwa 
Frankie Chia (appointed on 2 June 2010) Philip Siew Tin Gin 
Michael Heng Yeow Meng Helen Sim Cheng Geok 
Kon Yin Tong  Clement Tan 
John Lim Geok Peng (appointed on 2 June 2010) Tan Mong Geok 

The Committee considers issues relating to the public accounting profession, especially the matters affecting the small 
and medium practices (SMPs). It participates in dialogue sessions with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority 
(ACRA) and other relevant authorities, to promote the interests of the practising members.  

A networking session for the practitioners, the Lunar New Year “Lo Hei” Lunch with Practising Members was initiated by the 
Committee on 26 February 2010 at the Hyatt Hotel. The networking session provides a platform for social networking to 
enable potential cross-fertilisation of ideas, mergers and acquisitions, and joint initiatives among practitioners. It also gives 
practitioners the opportunity to get together and celebrate the beginning of a fruitful year.  

The Committee has continued to be keenly interested in the progress of the development of the ICPAS Structured Audit 
Core Training Program and the updating of the Audit Manual for Small Companies. The Committee shares the view that 
an effective audit training program for the smaller practices would be enhanced by a common audit approach based on a 
systematic and practical Audit Manual.  

In October, the Committee embarked on the initiative to identify the needs and challenges faced by the practitioners today 
by collating feedback from practitioners through forum discussion and online surveys. The objectives of the feedback are to 
elicit the salient issues that practitioners are facing and to produce insights through interactive forum discussions to solicit 
practical solutions to these issues. 

During the year, the Committee representatives spoke at the Public Accountants Conference 2010, and various Practice 
Monitoring Programme (PMP) and CPE workshops. A meeting was also held with our counterparts in the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants (MIA) during their visit to Singapore in October, to share experiences and to explore areas of future collaboration 
between the SMPs of the ICPAS and the MIA.

Task Force on Public Practice Programme
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson Lim Boon Cheng
Michael Kee Cheng Kong Patricia Tan Mui Siang
Khoo Teng Aun  Joseph Toh Kian Leong 
Lian Wee Cheow Tom Yee Lat Shing  

The Task Force, comprising six practising members, one independent director, and two academics from Nanyang Technological 
University and Singapore Management University, was tasked to develop a Public Practice Programme (PPP) that was suited 
for members who aspire to go into public practice. Having developed the content with the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Scotland (ICAS), the committee refi ned and localised the materials to ensure suitability in the Singapore market. The 
programme designed would help participants understand the business considerations, practice management and regulatory 
environment with key focus on the need for professional conduct and ethics.  

In April 2010, a public consultation paper was issued jointly by the Accounting & Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) 
and ICPAS to seek views regarding the objectives, content, delivery method and transitional arrangements of the PPP. By 
May 2010, favorable support coupled with helpful suggestions were received from practitioners, academics and individuals. 
The Task Force met on 11 June 2010 to deliberate the comments received. The comments were also discussed with ACRA 
on the 14 July 2010.  

A fi nal paper was presented to the Public Accountants Oversight Committee (PAOC) of ACRA. With the consent of PAOC, 
Ms Cheng Ai Phing made a presentation on PPP during the Public Accountants Conference organized by ACRA on 15 July 
2010. Following the joint press release by ICPAS and ACRA on 10 August 2010, the inaugural PPP was launched on 16 
September 2010.   

Since the launch of the PPP, two further sessions were conducted in November and December 2010. Participants have 
commented favorably on the usefulness of the programme and gained great insights from the six well-experienced facilitators, 
namely:
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• Mr Kaka Singh

• Mr Michael Kee Cheng Kong

• Ms Kuldip Gill

• Mr Lim Boon Cheng

• Mr Ravinthran Arumugam

• Mr Tom Yee Lat Shing

The PPP has gained prominence in the accounting sector internationally with ICPAS receiving requests for presentations on 
the PPP. On 5 October 2010, ICPAS shared on the programme and the feedback received from the participants with the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. On 30 November 2010, ICPAS made a teleconference presentation to the International 
Innovation Network (IIN), consisting of 18 member bodies from Europe, America and Asia Pacifi c, on the programme content 
in the Singapore framework.

Taxation & Levies Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Co-Chairman David Jackson Sandison
Sum Yee Loong – Co-Chairman Soh Pui Ming 
Boey Yoke Ping Angela Tan 
Khoo Ho Tong  Tay Hong Beng 
Lo Ngai Hung Wong Lai Yong
Albert Ng Teck Mong  Yee Fook Hong 
 
The Committee continued to deal with the interpretation and practice aspects of tax issues raised by members through its 
meetings held during the year. In March and October 2010, the Committee had regular dialogue sessions with the Inland 
Revenue Authority of Singapore (IRAS) to provide feedback on tax issues from the perspective of its members.   

The fi rst dialogue session, held on 29 March 2010, focused on issues relating to Singapore Double Taxation Agreements, tax 
treaty reliefs, transfer pricing and other income tax and deferred tax treatments.  

The Committee had its second dialogue session on 22 October 2010 with IRAS to discuss, among many others, matters 
relating to the interpretation and application of the Income Tax Act, withholding tax on charter fees and concessionary tax 
treatment for housing benefi ts.  

In October 2010, the Committee also submitted its proposals to the Ministry of Finance (MOF) in relation to MOF’s preparation 
for Budget 2011 with the view to make Singapore a more business-friendly location.

Young Professionals Group
Jack Wang Ying Yang – Chairman  Lee Boon Teck 
Jocelyn Goh Jonathan Ong Shyue Wen 
Michael Heng Yeow Meng Gail Shan Xunan
Alex Ho Wah Fong

The Committee organised and supported the following activities in 2010:

ICPAS Members’ Networking Night 2010
Celebrating the membership milestone at its Members’ Networking Night on 8 July, ICPAS President Dr Ernest Kan presented 
a special certifi cate to the 22,000th member Brandon Liu. Held at DXO@Colours By The Bay, the event saw the attendance 
of some 180 members and invited guests.

Work Life Balance – Get Ready for the Boom
35 participants attended this event organised by the Young Professionals Group Committee. Guest speaker, Mr Tim Hird, 
Managing Director of Robert Half International, shared the fi ndings of a recent survey on the sought after skills for the 
accountancy industry. He also gave an enlightening presentation on the employment and salary trends for fi nance professionals. 
Mr Jack Wang, Chairman of the YPG Committee, was the moderator during the panel discussion. Guest panelists Ms Allysia 
Ling, Ms Yvonne Wong and Ms Gail Shan together with Mr Tim Hird gave their professional views on career advancement 
and shared their rich work-related experience with the participants. Work-life balance does not mean an equal balance for 
both career and personal life. It however signifi es achievement and enjoyment, achieving success in one’s career and enjoying 
the fruits of one’s labor in one’s personal time. It was a great night of networking for both the speakers and the participants.
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Tri-University Accountancy Conference 2010
As part of ICPAS’ initiative to develop the interest of the local accountancy undergraduates on current issues infl uencing 
the accountancy landscape, ICPAS has jointly organised the Tri-University Conference with National University of Singapore 
(NUS) to reach out to the accountancy students in the local universities: Nanyang Technological University (NTU), National 
University of Singapore (NUS), and Singapore Management University (SMU).   

Held on 27 August 2010 at NUS, the conference consists of two discussion forums helmed by panelists with diverse experience 
in accountancy. The fi rst panel session was chaired by Associate Professor Ho Yew Kee of NUS Business School, with panelists 
Mr Ong Chao Choon, Advisory Transactions Partner of PwC; Ms Ang Fung Fung, Audit Partner of KPMG LLP; Mr Jack Wang, 
Chairman of Young Professionals Group of ICPAS and Mr Sitoh Yih Pin, Chairman of Nexia TS Public Accounting Corporation. 
They shared their views on the challenges and opportunities ahead as Singapore grows to be a key accountancy and fi nancial 
hub in the region.    

The second panel session was chaired by Associate Professor Mak Yuen Teen of NUS Business School, with panelists Mr Mak 
Keat Meng, Assurance Partner of Ernst & Young; Mr Chua How Kiat, Audit Partner of Deloitte and Touche; Mr Lee Boon Teck, 
member of the Young Professionals Group of ICPAS and Mr Rohan Kamis, Managing Partner of Rohan Mah & Partners. The 
highlights included the importance of good corporate governance, as well as some of the challenges that accountants may 
face in ensuring good corporate governance.   

The conference provided a useful platform for local accountancy undergraduates to gain greater insight to the accountancy 
industry, as well as exchange ideas and views with industry professionals. 

Career Talks for Universities – Nanyang Technological University (NTU), National University of Singapore (NUS) and Singapore 
Management University (SMU)
September and October were busy months for ICPAS’ youth outreach programmes at the three local universities as ICPAS 
had jointly organised career talks for the accountancy faculties of NTU, NUS and SMU.  

CPAs Singapore; Banking & Finance, Practice Firms and Commerce were invited to share with the undergraduates their 
career experience, and provide advice to those stepping into the corporate world.  

The one-hour panel discussion-cum-dialogue sessions were well received and the participants stayed and mingled with 
the panellists at the end of each session in a bid to fi nd out more. The talks were facilitated by a member of the Young 
Professionals Group.  
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On behalf of the Council of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (the “Institute”), we, 
Ernest Kan and Steven Phan, being the President and Treasurer respectively, do hereby state that in our opinion, 
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the Institute set out on pages 
46 to 70 are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Institute as 
at 31 December 2010 and of its results, changes in accumulated and miscellaneous funds and cash flows of the 
Group and the Institute for the financial year ended on that date.

Ernest Kan Steven Phan
President  Treasurer

Date: 1st March 2011

Statement by Council
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To members of the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore

Report on the Financial Statements
 
We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore 
(the “Institute”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 70, which comprise the balance 
sheets of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2010, the statements of comprehensive income, statements 
of changes in the accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and statements of cash fl ows of the Group and the 
Institute for the fi nancial year then ended and a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.  

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fi nancial statements in accordance with the 
provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as Council 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of fi nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the fi nancial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements of the Group and the fi nancial statements of the Institute are 
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Institute at 31 December 2010 and the 
results, changes in accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and cash fl ows of the Group and the Institute for the 
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act to be 
kept by the Institute have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

Baker Tilly TFW LLP
Public Accountants and
Certifi ed Public Accountants

Singapore

Date: 1st March 2011
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Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2010

 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

Secretariat

Continuing operations

Income for the year    
Members’ annual and admission fees 3,740,160 3,299,400 3,740,160 3,299,400
Other income 2,178,245 1,043,536 2,959,017 773,991

Total income 5,918,405 4,342,936 6,699,177 4,073,391 
Less expenditure    
Finance costs (1,804) (3,608) (1,804) (3,608)
Operating expenses (15,532,658) (5,958,384) (16,995,726) (5,912,873)

Total expenditure (15,534,462) (5,961,992) (16,997,530) (5,916,481)
    
Net defi cit from Secretariat before tax (9,616,057) (1,619,056) (10,298,353) (1,843,090)
    
Training Division

Continuing operations
    
Income for the year    
Income from training and other courses 16,715,262 16,258,153 6,402,295 5,507,911
Other income 446,244 819,193 223,576 302,842

Total income 17,161,506 17,077,346 6,625,871 5,810,753
 
Less expenditure    
Finance costs (8,310) (13,904) (4,347) (6,918)
Operating expenses (12,839,884) (10,271,788) (3,364,062) (3,356,465)

Total expenditure (12,848,194) (10,285,692) (3,368,409) (3,363,383)
 
Net surplus from Training Division from 
 continuing operations before tax 4,313,312 6,791,654 3,257,462 2,447,370

Discontinued operations
Net surplus from Training Division from
 Discontinued operations before tax – – 267,640 4,344,284

Total surplus from Training Division before tax 4,313,312 6,791,654 3,525,102 6,791,654

Total (defi cit)/surplus before share of
 associates’ results and tax (5,302,745) 5,172,598 (6,773,251) 4,948,564

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income (cont’d)
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2010

 Group Institute
 Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
   $ $ $ $

Combined

Continuing operations

Income for the year    
Members’ annual and admission fees 3  3,740,160 3,299,400 3,740,160 3,299,400
Income from training and other courses 4 16,715,262 16,258,153 6,402,295 5,507,911
Other income 5 2,624,489 1,862,729 3,182,593 1,076,833

Total income  23,079,911 21,420,282 13,325,048 9,884,144
     
Less expenditure     
Finance costs 6 (10,114) (17,512) (6,151) (10,526)
Operating expenses  (28,372,542) (16,230,172) (20,359,788) (9,269,338) 
 
Net (defi cit)/surplus from operating activities  (5,302,745) 5,172,598 (7,040,891) 604,280
Share of (loss)/profi t of associates (net of tax)  (12,767) 8,452 – –
  
Net (defi cit)/surplus before tax from  
  continuing operations  (5,315,512) 5,181,050 (7,040,891) 604,280
Income tax expense 7 (601,920) (864,142) (299,733) (305,127)

Net (defi cit)/surplus from continuing operations   (5,917,432) 4,316,908 (7,340,624) 299,153

Discontinued operations
Net surplus from discontinued operations 9 – – 243,836 3,802,658

Total (defi cit)/surplus for the year 10 (5,917,432) 4,316,908 (7,096,788) 4,101,811

Surplus in miscellaneous fund  10,428 6,589 10,428 6,589
     
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year  (5,907,004) 4,323,497 (7,086,360) 4,108,400

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Balance Sheets 
At 31 December 2010

 Group Institute
 Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
   $ $ $ $

Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment 11 31,832,049 41,006,655 14,687,707 41,006,655
Investment property 12 – – 16,639,605 –
Investment in subsidiaries 13 – – 300,003 3
Investment in associated companies 14 88,215 100,982 – –
Deferred tax assets 15 34,715 34,715 34,715 34,715
Intangible assets 16 17,234 – 17,234 –
  31,972,213 41,142,352 31,679,264 41,041,373

Current assets     
Inventories  12,921 15,694 12,921 15,694
Trade and other receivables 17 1,645,591 1,102,665 1,516,463 1,187,008
Cash and cash equivalents 18 13,851,717 11,839,047 7,691,202 10,506,780
  15,510,229 12,957,406 9,220,586 11,709,482
Total assets  47,482,442 54,099,758 40,899,850 52,750,855
  
Non-current liabilities     
Finance lease liabilities 19 1,876 114,186 1,876 114,186
  
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables  20 3,074,594 2,854,016 3,151,508 2,842,052
Course fees received in advance  4,075,878 3,620,804 194,623 3,620,804
Subscription fees received in advance  897,630 1,509,262 769,005 1,381,600
Finance lease liabilities 19 97,560 97,441 97,560 97,441
Current tax payable  666,356 1,328,497 387,973 1,311,107
  8,812,018 9,410,020 4,600,669 9,253,004

Total liabilities  8,813,894 9,524,206 4,602,545 9,367,190

Net assets  38,668,548 44,575,552 36,297,305 43,383,665
  
Represented by     
Accumulated fund  38,635,750 44,553,182 36,264,507 43,361,295
Miscellaneous fund 21 32,798 22,370 32,798 22,370
  38,668,548 44,575,552 36,297,305 43,383,665

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

48



Statements of Changes in Accumulated Fund and 
Miscellaneous Fund
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2010
   Accumulated Miscellaneous
   Fund  Fund Total
    $ $ $

Group
Balance at 1 January 2009   40,236,274 15,781 40,252,055

Total comprehensive income   4,316,908 6,589 4,323,497

Balance at 31 December 2009   44,553,182 22,370 44,575,552

Total comprehensive (loss)/income   (5,917,432) 10,428 (5,907,004)

Balance at 31 December 2010   38,635,750 32,798 38,668,548
    
Institute    
Balance at 1 January 2009   39,259,484 15,781 39,275,265

Total comprehensive income   4,101,811 6,589 4,108,400

Balance at 31 December 2009   43,361,295 22,370 43,383,665

Total comprehensive (loss)/income   (7,096,788) 10,428 (7,086,360)

Balance at 31 December 2010   36,264,507 32,798 36,297,305

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows 
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2010

 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

Cash fl ows from operating activities    
Net (defi cit)/surplus before tax from continuing
  operations (5,315,512) 5,181,050 (7,040,891) 604,280 
Net (defi cit)/surplus before tax from discontinued
   operations (Note 9) – – 267,640 4,344,284
Net (defi cit)/surplus before tax, total (5,315,512) 5,181,050 (6,773,251) 4,948,564

Adjustments for:    
Depreciation, impairment and amortisation for
   property, plant and equipment, investment property
   and intellectual property 9,530,194 1,088,965 9,379,645 1,088,965
Interest on fi nance leases 10,114 16,309 10,114 16,309 
Loan interest – 1,203 – 1,203
Interest income (27,428) (29,450) (23,711) (24,333)
Share of (loss)/profi t of associates 12,767 (8,452) – –
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 21,863 1,379 – 1,379

Operating surplus before working capital changes 4,231,998 6,251,004 2,592,797 6,032,087

Inventory 2,773 11,521 2,773 11,521
Receivables (542,214) (399,925) 886,000 (408,308)
Subscription fees received in advance (611,632) 736,629 (612,592) 722,742
Payables 220,578 313,371 (905,402) 315,051
Course fees received in advance 455,074 73,561 (3,426,181) 73,563
Miscellaneous fund 10,428 6,589 10,428 6,589
Cash generated from operations 3,767,005 6,992,750 (1,452,177) 6,753,245
Income tax paid (1,264,061) (517,584) (1,246,671) (495,998)
Net cash from operating activities 2,502,944 6,475,166 (2,698,848) 6,257,247

Cash fl ows from investing activities     
Interest received 26,716 30,371 23,112 24,078
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 13) – – (300,000) –
Fixed deposit pledged (37,500) – – –
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (392,286) (495,037) (287,774) (495,037)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
   and equipment 16,989 4,540 589,625 4,540
Purchase of intellectual property (19,388) – (19,388) –
 
Net cash used in investing activities (405,469) (460,126) 5,575 (466,419)

Cash fl ows from fi nancing activities     
Interest paid on fi nance leases (10,114) (16,309) (10,114) (16,309)
Loan interest paid – (3,887) – (3,887)
Repayment of principal loan – (1,000,000) – (1,000,000)
Repayment of fi nance lease liabilities (112,191) (97,207) (112,191) (97,207)

Net cash used in fi nancing activities (122,305) (1,117,403) (122,305) (1,117,403)
  
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
   equivalents  from continuing operations 1,975,170 4,897,637 (2,815,578) 4,673,425
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,839,047 6,941,410 10,506,780 5,833,355 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 18) 13,814,217 11,839,047 7,691,202 10,506,780

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2010

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying fi nancial statements.

1 Corporate information

 The Institute (ROS Ref. No. 0137/2004) is the national organisation of the accountancy profession in Singapore. 
It was established in June 1963 as the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) under the SSA Ordinance 1963, 
then reconstituted and renamed the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) on 11 
February 1989 under the Accountants Act 1987. As of 1 April 2004, ICPAS is reconstituted as a society under 
the Societies Act. The restructuring is primarily a change of form for the Institute as ICPAS continues to be the 
national body for the accountancy profession in Singapore and its functions remain unchanged.  The registered 
offi ce of the Institute is located at 20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805.

 The principal activities of the Institute are those of administering the Institute’s membership, catering for the 
training and professional development of its members.

 The consolidated fi nancial statements relate to the Institute and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 
Group) and the Group’s interests in associates.

2 Signifi cant accounting policies

 a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act and 
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

The financial statements, which are presented in Singapore dollars (“$”), have been prepared on 
historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Institute and are 
consistent with those used in the previous financial year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of profit or 
loss during the financial year.  Although these estimates are based on the Council’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions and historical experiences and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. 
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2(t).

In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised FRS and Interpretations 
of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current financial year.
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2 Signifi cant accounting policies (cont’d)

 a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)

The adoption of these new/revised FRS has no material effect on the fi nancial statements.

The Group has not applied the following new/revised FRS or interpretations that have been issued as of 
the balance sheet date but are not yet effective:

FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures
INT FRS 115 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
INT FRS 119 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
Amendments to FRS 32 Classifi cation of Rights Issues
Amendments to FRS 101 Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 107
 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to INT FRS 114 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
Improvements to FRSs 2010 project

The initial application of these standards and interpretations, where applicable, are not expected to have 
any material impact on the Group’s fi nancial statements.

 b) Consolidation

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating 
policies so as to obtain benefi ts from its activities. The fi nancial statements of the subsidiaries are 
included in the consolidated fi nancial statements from the date of the control commences until the date 
that control ceases. Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
fi nancial statements.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has signifi cant infl uence, but not control, over their fi nancial 
and operating policies. The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. 
The consolidated fi nancial statements include the Group’s share of the profi t or loss of the associates from 
the date that signifi cant infl uence commences until the date that signifi cant infl uence ceases. When the 
Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including 
any long-term investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except 
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Institute

In the Institute’s separate fi nancial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at 
cost less impairment losses.

 c) Functional and foreign currencies

Functional currency

Items included in the consolidated fi nancial statements are measured using the currency that best refl ects 
the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Institute and its 
subsidiaries (“the functional currency”). The consolidated fi nancial statements are presented in Singapore 
dollars (“$”), which is the functional currency of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate in 
effect at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at the balance sheet date are translated into the functional currency at the rates ruling at that date.  All 
exchange differences are taken to profi t or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements

52



2 Signifi cant accounting policies (cont’d)

 d) Inventories

Inventories, comprising accounting books and manuals, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is calculated using the fi rst-in, fi rst-out method.

 e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and costs of bringing 
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are 
included as part of the cost of asset if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration costs is 
incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.  Expenditure for additions, improvements and 
renewals are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to profi t or loss. The 
cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefi ts embodied within the part will fl ow to the 
Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in profi t or loss as incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost 
less residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Furniture and offi ce equipment 3 to 10 years
Computers 3 to 4 years
Renovation 3 to 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
fi nancial year-end.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefi ts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is 
included in profi t or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

 f) Investment property

Investment property comprises signifi cant portion of freehold buildings that the Institute leased out to its 
subsidiary to earn rental. Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated using 
the straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful life of 50 years. 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. When transfer 
is made between investment property and owner-occupied property, its carrying amount (cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment) at the date of transfer becomes its carrying amount for 
subsequent accounting.

On disposal of investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
is recognized in profi t or loss.

 g)  Intangible assets

Acquired intellectual property is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the intellectual 
property over their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Signifi cant accounting policies (cont’d)

 h)  Impairment of non-fi nancial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised in profi t or loss if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifi able asset group that 
generates cash fl ows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell 
and its value in use.  In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash fl ows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specifi c to the asset or cash-generating unit.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss has been recognised.  Reversal of impairment loss 
is recorded in profi t or loss.  After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods 
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.

 i)  Financial assets

i) Classifi cation

The Group classifi es its fi nancial assets according to the purpose for which the assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classifi cation of its fi nancial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates 
this designation at every reporting date.  The Group’s only fi nancial assets are loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except those maturing later 
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classifi ed as non-current assets. Loans and 
receivables excluding prepayments are presented as “trade and other receivables”, “fi xed deposits” 
and “cash and bank balances” on the balance sheet.

ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of fi nancial assets are recognised on trade-date – the date on which 
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 
to receive cash fl ows from the fi nancial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group 
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a fi nancial asset, the 
difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in profi t or loss. Any 
amount in the fair value reserve relating to that asset is also transferred to profi t or loss.

iii) Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for fi nancial assets 
at fair value through profi t or loss, which are recognised at fair value.  Transaction costs for fi nancial 
assets at fair value through profi t and loss are recognised as expenses.

iv) Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest income on fi nancial assets are recognised separately in profi t or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Signifi cant accounting policies (cont’d)

 i)  Financial assets (cont’d)

v) Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a fi nancial 
asset or a group of fi nancial assets is impaired.

Loans and receivables

Signifi cant fi nancial diffi culties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or 
fi nancial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in payments are considered indicators that the 
receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment loss recognised 
in profi t or loss. The impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash fl ows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line item 
in profi t or loss.

 j) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade payables, other amounts payable and interest-bearing loans.  Financial 
liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the fi nancial instrument. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair 
value of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profi t or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the amortisation process. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expired.

 k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a 
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic benefi ts will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to refl ect the current best estimate. 
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of 
the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

 l) Leases

Finance leases

Leases of assets in which the Group assumes substantially the risks and rewards of ownership are classifi ed 
as fi nance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired through fi nance leases are capitalised at the 
inception of the lease at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy 
applicable to that asset. Lease payments are apportioned between the fi nance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  
Finance charges are charged to profi t or loss.

Operating leases

Lessee

Leases where signifi cant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classifi ed as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are taken to profi t or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to 
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination 
takes place.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Signifi cant accounting policies (cont’d)

 l) Leases  (cont’d)

Lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are 
classifi ed as operating leases. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

 m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignifi cant 
risk of changes in value.

 n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Group 
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Members’ annual and admission fees are recognised when due.

Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are recognised when the services are 
rendered.

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest method unless 
collectibility is in doubt.

Rental income from operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Sundry income, includes sale of Members’ Handbooks, which are recognised when the goods sold are 
delivered and subvention fees which are recognised when received for the current fi nancial year.

 o) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, 
the fair value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and is amortised to profi t or 
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in profi t or loss over the period necessary to 
match them on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

 p) Employee benefi ts

Defi ned contribution plans

As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident 
Fund (CPF) Scheme which is a defi ned contribution pension scheme. Contributions to CPF are recognised 
as expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. The estimated 
liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Signifi cant accounting policies (cont’d)

 q) Income tax
  

Income tax for the fi nancial year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in profi t 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences at 
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
fi nancial statements. Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that 
affect neither accounting nor taxable profi t.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profi ts will be 
available against which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefi t 
will be realised.

 r) Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs that are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds 
are recognised as expense using the effective interest method in the period in which they are incurred 
except for borrowings costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are substantially completed.

 s) Discontinued operations

A component of the Group is classifi ed as a “discontinued operation” when the criteria to be classifi ed 
as held for sale have been met or it has been disposed of and such a component represents a separate 
major line of business or geographical area of operations or is part of a single coordinated major line of 
business or geographical area of operations. A component is deemed to be held for sale if its carrying 
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

 t) Signifi cant accounting estimates and judgements

i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment property
The cost of property, plant and equipment and investment property are depreciated on a straight-
line basis  over their respective useful lives.  Management estimates the useful lives of these 
property, plant and equipment and investment property to be within 3 to 50 years. The carrying 
amount of the Group and Institute’s property, plant and equipment and investment property as 
at 31 December 2010 are stated in Notes 11 and 12. Changes in the expected level of usage and 
technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these 
assets. Therefore future depreciation charges could be revised and impact the profi t in future years.

ii) Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

There are no signifi cant judgements made in applying accounting policies in the preparation of the 
consolidated fi nancial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Members’ annual and admission fees
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Members annual fees 3,129,390 2,901,900 3,129,390 2,901,900
 Members admission fees 610,770 397,500 610,770 397,500
  3,740,160 3,299,400 3,740,160 3,299,400

4 Income from training and other courses
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Income from CPE 2,320,772 1,603,172 2,320,772 1,603,172
 Income from other training courses 14,394,490 14,654,981 4,081,523 3,904,739
  16,715,262 16,258,153 6,402,295 5,507,911

5 Other income
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Registration and subscription fees 730,175 458,973 – –
 Interest income from bank deposits and
 bank balances 27,428 29,450 23,711 24,333
 Management fee charged to subsidiaries
 and associates 6,800 6,800 857,905 193,300
 Practice Monitoring income 241,092 169,500 241,092 169,500
 Government grant - jobs credit scheme 64,753 323,677 43,881 205,877
 Seminar and talk fees 616,079 184,525 596,031 128,418
 Rental Income 83,350 29,854 1,091,198 13,951
 Sundry income 854,812 659,950 328,775 341,454
  2,624,489 1,862,729 3,182,593 1,076,833

6 Finance costs 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Interest on fi nance lease 10,114 16,309 6,151 9,323
 Interest on loan – 1,203 – 1,203
  10,114 17,512 6,151 10,526
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7 Income tax expense
 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Income tax expense from 
 continuing operations 601,920 864,142 299,733 305,127
 Income tax expense from
 discontinued operations 
 (Note 9) – – 23,804 541,626
  601,920 864,142 323,537 846,753

 Current tax  591,906 834,732 313,523 817,343
 Underprovision in prior year 10,014 29,410 10,014 29,410
  601,920 864,142 323,537 846,753

 The income tax expense on the results of the fi nancial year varies from the amount of income tax determined by
 applying the Singapore statutory rate of income tax to total surplus before tax due to the following factors:
 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Net (defi cit)/surplus before tax
 from continuing operations (5,315,512) 5,181,050 (7,040,891) 604,280
 Net surplus before tax from
 discontinued operations – – 267,640 4,344,284
 Total (defi cit)/surplus before tax (5,315,512) 5,181,050 (6,773,251) 4,948,564
 
  
 Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% (903,637) 880,779 (1,151,453) 841,256
 Singapore statutory stepped 
 income Exemption (79,996) (44,254) (25,925) (25,925)
 Income not subject to tax (10,703) (55,025) (10,703) (55,025)
 Expenses not deductible for 
  tax purposes 1,530,794 99,900 1,518,730 99,900
 Underprovision of income
  tax in prior year 10,014 29,410 10,014 29,410
 Deferred tax assets not recognised 57,095 – – –
 Others (1,647) (46,668) (17,126) (42,863)
  601,920 864,142 323,537 846,753

8 Staff costs  
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Salaries and bonuses 6,979,375 5,487,262 4,863,581 5,487,262
 CPF 804,178 638,801 536,364 638,801
 Other employee benefi t expenses 374,082 222,879 293,133 222,879
  8,157,635 6,348,942 5,693,078 6,348,942
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9 Discontinued operations - Institute

During the year, the Institute incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, SAA Global Education Centre Pte. Ltd. 
(“SAA GE”) and transferred its private education business division to SAA GE on 8 March 2010. 

 The Institute transferred the assets and liabilities of the private education business division at its carrying amounts 
to SAA GE. Consequently, no gain or loss is recognised to profi t or loss. 

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations”, the Institute’s results and cash fl ows for the current fi nancial year are presented separately as 
continuing operations and discontinued operations following the transfer of the above mentioned business.

Accordingly, the Institute’s results for the immediate preceding fi nancial year are restated to conform to the 
presentation of the Institute’s results for the current fi nancial year.

a) An analysis of the results of discontinued operations is as follows:
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Income for the year
 Income from other training courses  1,650,633 10,750,243
 Other income  222,668 516,349

 Total income  1,873,301 11,266,592

 Less expenditure  
 Finance costs  3,963 6,986
 Operating expenses  1,601,698 6,915,322
 
 Total expenditure  1,605,661 6,922,308

 Surplus before tax from discontinued operations  267,640 4,344,284
 Income tax expense (Note 7)  (23,804) (541,626)

 Surplus after tax from discontinued operations  243,836 3,802,658

b) An analysis of the cash fl ows of discontinued operations is as follows:
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Operating activities  (2,601,500) 4,093,634
 Investing activities  253,905 (405,737)
 Financing activities  – –
 Net cash fl ows  (2,347,595) 3,687,897

 The above mentioned transfer has no impact to the Group’s results and cash fl ows for the current and
 immediate fi nancial year.

10 Total (defi cit)/surplus for the year

 This is arrived at after charging the following:
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $
 Depreciation for property plant and equipment (Note 11) 1,119,113 1,088,965 836,874 1,088,965
 Depreciation for investment property (Note 12) – – 131,690 –
 Impairment loss of freehold land and building
  (Note 11 and 12) 8,408,927 – 8,408,927 –
 Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) 2,154 – 2,154 –
 Direct costs of providing training and other courses 4,118,820 4,104,371 1,766,155 4,086,863
 Foreign exchange loss 301 80 301 80
 Loss on disposal of property,
    plant and equipment 21,863 1,378 – 1,378
 Impairment loss on trade receivables 8,392 8,563 7,532 8,563
 Rental expenses 1,110,764 552,151 801,067 552,151
 Staff costs (Note 8) 8,157,635 6,348,942 5,693,078 6,348,942
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11 Property, plant and equipment

 Group
   Furniture
 Freehold Freehold & Offi ce
 Land Buildings Equipment Computers Renovation Total
 $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost       
Balance as at 1 January 2009 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,363,959 1,237,936 1,370,572 45,855,231
Additions – – 60,669 375,056 116,236 551,961
Disposals – – (29,168) (78,985) – (108,153)
Reclassifi cations/ Written off – – 315,480 14,000 (386,404) (56,924)
     
Balance as at 31 December 2009 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,710,940 1,548,007 1,100,404 46,242,115
Additions – – 131,031 161,485 99,770 392,286
Disposals – – (40,503) – – (40,503)
Written off – – (33,366) (12,865) (6,519) (52,750)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,768,102 1,696,627 1,193,655 46,541,148

Accumulated depreciation
 and impairment      
Balance as at 1 January 2009 – 2,154,290 649,768 954,613 490,058 4,248,729
Depreciation charge for the year
 (Note 10) – 434,135 285,031 238,433 131,366 1,088,965
Disposals – – (23,250) (78,984) – (102,234)

Balance as at 31 December 2009 – 2,588,425 911,549 1,114,062 621,424 5,235,460
Depreciation charge for the year
 (Note 10) – 434,135 283,914 241,608 159,456 1,119,113
Disposals – – (23,514) – – (23,514)
Written off – – (18,329) (6,040) (6,518) (30,887)
Impairment losses 7,397,595 1,011,332 – – – 8,408,927

Balance as at 31 December 2010 7,397,595 4,033,892 1,153,620 1,349,630 774,362 14,709,099
 
 
Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31 December 2009 20,176,000 19,118,339 799,391 433,945 478,980 41,006,655
Balance as at 31 December 2010 12,778,405 17,672,872 614,482 346,997 419,293 31,832,049

As at balance sheet date, the market value of the 2 properties as determined by independent professional valuer 
were $40,893,000 collectively. CPA House was valued at S$16,893,000 and #23-00, 6 Raffl es Quay valued at 
S$24,000,000.

 The CPA House is classifi ed as an investment property in the Institute’s balance sheet as it is substantially leased 
out to its wholly-owned subsidiary, SAA Global Education Centre Pte Ltd. However in the Group’s balance sheet 
this is classifi ed as property, plant and equipment.
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11 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 Institute
   Furniture
 Freehold Freehold & Offi ce
 Land Buildings Equipment Computers Renovation Total
 $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost       
Balance as at 1 January 2009 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,363,959 1,237,936 1,370,572 45,855,231
Additions – – 60,669 375,056 116,236 551,961
Disposals – – (29,168) (78,985) – (108,153)
Reclassifi cations/ Written off – – 315,480 14,000 (386,404) (56,924)
     
Balance as at 31 December 2009 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,710,940 1,548,007 1,100,404 46,242,115
Additions – – 83,303 131,666 72,805 287,774
Disposals* – – (577,702) (408,468) (499,193) (1,485,363)
Written off – – (16,724) (6,040) (6,519) (29,283)
Reclassify to investment
  property (Note 12) (20,176,000) (6,584,502) – – – (26,760,502)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 – 15,122,262 1,199,817 1,265,165 667,497 18,254,741

Accumulated depreciation      
Balance as at 1 January 2009 – 2,154,290 649,768 954,613 490,058 4,248,729
Depreciation charge for the year
 (Note 10) – 434,135 285,031 238,433 131,366 1,088,965
Disposals – – (23,250) (78,984) – (102,234)

Balance as at 31 December 2009 – 2,588,425 911,549 1,114,062 621,424 5,235,460
Depreciation charge for the year
 (Note 10) – 302,445 240,814 205,129 88,486 836,874
Disposals* – – (374,457) (344,952) (176,328) (895,737)
Written off – – (16,724) (6,040) (6,519) (29,283)
Reclassify to investment
  property (Note 12) – (1,580,280) – – – (1,580,280)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 – 1,310,590 761,182 968,199 527,063 3,567,034

Carrying Amount
Balance as at 31 December 2009 20,176,000 19,118,339 799,391 433,945 478,980 41,006,655
Balance as at 31 December 2010 – 13,811,672 438,635 296,966 140,434 14,687,707

* Included in the disposals are the transfer of assets to its fully owned subsidiary SAA GE at cost of   S$1,444,860, 
 accumulated depreciation of S$872,223 and net book value of S$572,637. 

Assets held under finance leases 

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held under fi nance leases as at 31 December 2010 was 
S$89,631 (2009: $196,382). Leased assets are pledged as security for the related fi nance lease liabilities (Note 19).
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11 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and freehold buildings were transferred to 
Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd which holds the freehold land and freehold buildings 
in trust for the Institute.

  Location
 Freehold properties i) CPA House
   20 Aljunied Road
   Singapore 389805
   Consisting of 5 fl oors
   (Units #01-01, #01-03, #01-04, #01-05, #01-06, 
   #02-01, #02-02, #04-01, #04-02, #05-01, #05-02, 
   #06-01 and #06-02) and totalling 2,779 sq. meters
 
  ii) 6 Raffl es Quay
   #23-00 
   Singapore 048580

12 Investment property
  Institute
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Cost 
 Reclassifi ed from property, plant and equipment (Note 11)  26,760,502 –

 At end of year   26,760,502 –

 Accumulated depreciation and impairment  
 Reclassifi ed from property, plant and equipment (Note 11)   1,580,280 –
 Depreciation charge (Note 10)   131,690 –
 Impairment loss (Note 10)   8,408,927  
 At end of year   10,120,897 –
 Net book value   16,639,605 –

 During the year, the Institute leased out its freehold properties at CPA House to its subsidiary. Consequently, the 
Institute reclassifi ed its freehold properties from property, plant and equipment to investment property.

 The fair value of the investment property at the balance sheet date as determined by independent professional 
valuer is $16,893,000 using the Market Data Approach at the balance sheet date. As this recoverable amount is 
lower than its carrying amount, an impairment loss of $8,408,927 is made. The impairment loss is the difference 
between the carrying amount and the fair value less cost to sell.

The following amounts are recognised in profi t or loss:

  Institute
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Rental income  1,173,748 –
Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties
 that generated rental income   (210,101) –

Depreciation charge   (131,690) –

Notes to the Financial Statements
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13 Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions

a) Investment in subsidiaries
  Institute
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Unquoted equity shares, at cost
 At beginning of year   3 3
 Addition for the year   300,000 –

 At end of year   300,003 3
 

b) Details of subsidiaries are as follows:  
  Effective interest held
  by the Group
 Name of subsidiaries Country of incorporation 2010 2009
   % %

 Association of Taxation Technicians (S) Limited* Singapore 100 100

 Certifi ed Accounting Technicians (Singapore) Ltd* Singapore 100 100

 Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants Singapore 100 100
 of Singapore Pte Ltd (“ICPAS PL”)
   
 SAA Global Education Centre Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100 –
 
 Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals Limited* Singapore 100 –
 

* There is no cost of investment as the subsidiaries are companies limited by guarantee whereby the Institute 
undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of these subsidiaries in the event of its liquidation 
to an amount not exceeding $10. These subsidiaries are deemed to be wholly-owned subsidiaries of the 
Institute as Council Members of the Institute have direct control over these subsidiaries.

C) Intra-group transactions
 During the fi nancial year, the Institute has the following signifi cant transactions with the subsidiaries on terms 

agreed between the parties:
  Institute
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Subscription of journals   28,262 14,689
 Management fee income   851,105 186,000
 Rental income   1,090,398 –

14 Investment in associated companies
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Investment in associated companies 88,215 100,982 –* –*

  Group
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Share of profi ts
 Beginning of fi nancial year    100,982 92,530
 Share of (losses)/profi ts   (12,767) 8,452

 End of fi nancial year   88,215 100,982

Notes to the Financial Statements
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14 Investment in associated companies (cont’d)
Details of associates are as follows:  

  Effective interest held
  by the Group
 Name Country of incorporation 2010 2009
   % %

 Insolvency Practitioners Association of Singapore Limited Singapore 50 50
 Singapore Institute of Taxation Limited Singapore 33 33

* There is no cost of investment as the associates are companies limited by guarantee whereby every member 
of the company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of the company in the event of its 
liquidation to an amount not exceeding $10.

The summarised fi nancial information of the associated companies not adjusted for the proportion ownership 
interest held by the Group is as follows:

   2010 2009
  $ $

 Assets and liabilities
 Current assets   256,239 240,778

 Current liabilities   77,567 18,812
 
 Results
 Revenue   24,325 33,604
 (Loss)/profi t after taxation   (43,295) 15,960

During the fi nancial year, the Institute has the following transaction with an associate on the terms agreed 
between the parties:

  $ $

 Management fee income  6,800 6,800

15 Deferred tax assets
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Group
 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect of

 temporary differences arising from :
 Accelerated tax depreciation   (82,766) (87,590)
 Provision for bonus   128,875 86,400
 Provision for unutilised annual leave   45,701 35,905
 Others   (57,095) –
    34,715 34,715
 
 Representing :  
 Deferred tax assets   174,576 122,305
 Deferred tax liabilities   (139,861) (87,590)
    34,715 34,715

Notes to the Financial Statements
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15 Deferred tax assets (cont’d)
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Institute
 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect of

 temporary differences arising from :
 Accelerated tax depreciation   (79,491) (87,590)
 Provision for bonus   81,900 86,400
 Provision for unutilised annual leave   32,306 35,905
    34,715 34,715

 
 Representing :  
 Deferred tax assets   114,206 122,305
 Deferred tax liabilities   (79,491) (87,590)
    34,715 34,715

16 Intangible assets 
  Group and Institute
   2010 2009
  $ $

 Intellectual property, at cost   19,388 –
 Less amortisation   (2,154) –
    17,234 –
 

17 Trade and other receivables 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Trade receivables 590,955 466,671 460,952 466,671
 Amount due from (trade)  
  - subsidiaries – – 431,088 85,739
  - associate 7,276 6,089 7,276 6,089
 Accrued practice review fee receivable 83,620 96,000 83,620 96,000
 Deposits 186,206 181,220 184,806 181,220
 Interest receivable 3,213 2,501 1,704 1,105
 Others 28,271 53,046 25,091 53,046
 Prepayments 746,050 297,138 321,926 297,138
   1,645,591 1,102,665 1,516,463 1,187,008

Trade receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are generally on immediate to about 6 months’ terms.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fi xed deposits. 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Interest bearing accounts 7,340,272 7,144,290 6,353,295 6,248,417
 Non- interest bearing accounts 6,511,445 4,694,757 1,337,907 4,258,363
   13,851,717 11,839,047 7,691,202 10,506,780
 Less Fixed deposit pledged  (37,500) – – –
 As per cash fl ow statement 13,814,217 11,839,047 7,691,202 10,506,780

Included in interest bearing accounts of the Group and Company are fi xed deposits totalling $4,843,354 
(2009: $4,740,727) and $3,856,377 (2009: $3,844,854) respectively which are placed for varying periods of 
between 1 to 12 months (2009: 1 to 12 months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and 
the Institute and earn interest of 0.1875% to 1%  (2009: 0.25% to 0.825%) per annum. Fixed deposits of $37,000 
(2009: Nil) are pledged to banker for banking facilities.

19 Finance lease liabilities

 Group & Institute
 Minimum lease payments Present value of payments
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

Within one year 101,331 108,155 97,560 97,441

After one year but not more than fi ve years 1,940 120,123 1,876 114,186

Total minimum lease payments 103,271 228,278 99,436 211,627
Less: Finance charges (3,835) (16,651) – –

Present value of minimum lease payments 99,436 211,627 99,436 211,627

These fi nance lease liabilities are secured by a charge over leased assets (Note 11).

 At the expiration of the fi nance lease agreements, the Institute has the option to purchase the assets for $3,345 
(2009: $10,257). In the event that the option is not exercised, the lessor has the right to sell the assets to a third 
party and the Institute has undertaken to indemnify the lessor for the difference if the selling price is lower than 
the residual value of $3,345 (2009: $10,257). The effective rate of interest is approximately 3.8% to 6.3% (3.8% to 
6.3%) per annum.

20 Trade and other payables
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

Trade payables 1,385,361 893,278 864,729 893,278
Amount due to a subsidiary (non-trade) – – 1,214,858 –
Other payables – 448,948 – 448,948
Accrued operating expenses 1,689,233 1,511,790 1,071,921 1,499,826
 3,074,594 2,854,016 3,151,508 2,842,052

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day term.

 Amount due to a subsidiary is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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21 Miscellaneous fund

 Community Service Project Fund

 The fund is made up of donations from members, money from fund-raising projects and contributions from the 
Institute.  It is used for the Institute’s community service projects and is made up as follows: 

  Group and Institute
   2010 2009
  $ $

 At beginning of year  22,370 15,781
 Add: Donations from members  14,128 25,020
 Less: Community service projects funded during the year  (3,700) (18,431)
 Net surplus for the year  10,428 6,589
 At end of year  32,798 22,370

22 Key management personnel compensation

 Key management personnel compensation comprised:
 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Short-term employee benefi ts 1,190,049 1,144,905 898,832 1,144,905
 CPF contribution 60,192 84,798 44,088 84,798
   1,250,241 1,229,703 942,920 1,229,703

23 Commitments

 (i) Capital commitments

  Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the fi nancial statements
  is as follows: 
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Capital commitments in respect of property,
    plant and equipment 809,300 704,050 770,350 704,050

 (ii) Operating lease commitments
  The Group leases an offi ce under non-cancellable operating lease agreement.  

  Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease as at balance sheet date are as follows:

 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

 Within one year 658,053 464,213 483,053 464,213
 After one year but within fi ve years 525,818 881,431 525,818 881,431

In year 2008, the Institute entered into a lease agreement for the use of property at No. 12 Aljunied Road, #03 and 
#04 KH Plaza, Aljunied, Singapore, for a fi xed monthly rental for a term of 4 years.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

24 Financial instruments

(a) Categories of fi nancial instruments
 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2008
 $ $ $ $

Financial assets    
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents) 14,751,258 12,644,574 8,885,739 11,396,650 
Financial liabilities    
Amortised cost 2,905,183 2,803,804 3,060,886 2,791,840

(b) Financial risk management

 The main risks arising from the Group’s fi nancial management are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and 
foreign currency risk. The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are 
summarised below:

 Interest rate risk

 The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing fi xed deposits. 
The sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect on profi t or loss is considered 
not signifi cant.

 Credit risk

 The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its fi nancial 
and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due. The Group manages this risk by monitoring 
credit ratings and limiting the aggregate fi nancial exposure to any individual counterparty.

 The Group places its cash and fi xed deposits with banks and fi nancial institutions which are regulated.

 The credit risk is as follows :

i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

 Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-ratings 
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are 
substantially companies and individual with a good collection track record with the Group.

ii) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

 There is no other class of fi nancial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade receivables.

 The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows :

 Group Institute
 2010 2009 2010 2009
 $ $ $ $

Past due 0 to 3 months 198,089 120,070 120,975 120,070
Past due 3 to 6 months 112,224 135,976 65,954 135,976
Past due over 6 months 280,642 210,625 274,023 210,625
 590,955 466,671 460,952 466,671
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24 Financial instruments

b) Financial risk management (cont’d)

 Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed 
adequate by the Management to fi nance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fl uctuations in cash 
fl ows.

 The Group targets for available funds in the form of surplus liquidity and aims at maintaining fl exibility in funding 
by keeping committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

The table below analyses the maturity profi le of the Group’s and Institute’s fi nancial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted cash fl ows.   

 Less than Between Between Over
  1 year 1 & 2 years 2 & 5 years 5 years
 $ $ $ $

Group
At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables 2,805,747 – – –
Finance lease 101,331 1,940 – –
 
At 31 December 2009    
Trade and other payables 2,592,177 – – –
Finance lease 108,155 120,123 – –

Institute
At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables 2,961,450 – – –
Finance lease 101,331 1,940 – –

At 31 December 2009    
Trade and other payables 2,580,213 – – –
Finance lease 108,155 120,123 – –

 Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash fl ows and transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging 
and speculative purposes.

 The Group has no signifi cant exposure in respect of fi nancial assets and liabilities held in foreign currency.

c) Fair value

The carrying amounts of fi nancial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and 
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their 
fair values because of the short period to maturity.

25 Fund management

The Institute’s objectives when managing its funds are to safeguard its ability to maintain adequate working capital 
to continue as going concern, to promote its objective to lead, develop and support accountancy professionals in 
Singapore and uphold the public interest and these objectives remain unchanged from previous year.

26 Authorisation of fi nancial statements

The fi nancial statements of the Group and Institute for the fi nancial year ended 31 December 2010 were authorised 
for issue by the Council on 1st March 2011.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that in accordance with Article 67 of the Constitution of the Institute, 
the Annual General Meeting 2010/2011 of the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of 
Singapore will be held on Saturday, 16 April 2011 at 2.00 pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina 
Mandarin Ballroom, Level 1, 6 Raffl es Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039594.

AGENDA

1 President’s address.

2 To confi rm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting 2009/2010 of members held on 
17 April 2010.

3 To receive the Report of the Council for the year 2010/2011 and Accounts of the 
Institute for the year ended 31 December 2010.

4 To elect eight members to the Council as follows:

 (a) Practising members – four to hold offi ce for a term of two years;

 (b) Non-Practising members – four to hold offi ce for a term of two years.

 The following members of the Council retire in accordance with the provisions of Articles 
38 to 40 of the Constitution:

Practising Members Non-Practising Members

Don Ho Mun-Tuke Quek Shi Kui
Kon Yin Tong Tan Boen Eng
Steven Phan Swee Kim Tom Yee Lat Shing
Sitoh Yih Pin Yim Kam May

 Nominations have been received for the following:

Practising Members Nominated by

Peter Chay Fook Yuen Eng Chin Chin
 Philip Lee Jee Cheng
 Tan Wah Yeow
 Tham Sai Choy
 Bob Yap Cheng Ghee

Don Ho Mun-Tuke Chee Yoh Chuang
 Leow Quek Shiong
 Neo Ban Chuan
 Seshadri Rajagopalan
 Tam Chee Chong
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Practising Members Nominated by

Steven Phan Swee Kim Gajendran s/o Vyapuri
 Low Bek Teng
 Philip Ng Weng Kwai
 Soh Chung Hian
 Tan Seng Choon

Sitoh Yih Pin Chan Yee Hong
 Chin Chee Choon
 Kim Yoon Sook
 Loh Ji Kin
 Henry Tan Song Kok

Non-Practising Members Nominated by

Ho Tuck Chuen Goh Sin Wei
 Leong Wai Kin
 Soo Chee Kong
 Tan Chin Huat
 Yeo Wee Lam

Ho Yew Kee Chng Chee Kiong
 Angeline Kwek Ai Lin
 Alfred Loh Lye Chye
 Charlene See Pea Choo
 Ruth Tan Seow Kuan

Tan Boen Eng  Choo Siew Mei
 New Ai Ling
 Geraldine Ong Chun Ping
 Annette Sui Chai Siok
 Tan Eng Teng

Yim Kam May Goh Khee Kuan
 Ho Juat Lin
 Lam Kim Kee
 Quek Shi Kui
 Tom Yee Lat Shing

 By order of the Council

 Janet Tan
 Secretary
 22 March 2011
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INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS OF SINGAPORE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING LUNCH REPLY FORM

20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805
Telephone : (65) 6749 8060    
Facsimile : (65) 6749 8061

Lunch will be served at 12.45pm, followed by the Annual General Meeting at 2.00pm.  To assist the Secretariat
in the lunch arrangements, please return this reply form to the Institute by 8 April 2011.

I will be attending the AGM lunch on Saturday, 16 April 2011, at 12.45pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina    
Mandarin Ballroom, Level 1, 6 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039594.  

Member’s Name (in block):

I/C Number:

Membership Category: *Honorary/Fellow/Practising/Non-Practising/Provisional/Member-in-retirement

Company:

Contact Number: (Mobile) (Office) (Home)

E-mail address:

Date:             

Please tick if *Vegetarian/Muslim menu is required  

Note: The lunch menu will be ‘no pork, no lard’.

*Please delete where inapplicable.

Reply Form for
Annual General Meeting Lunch

NB: To avoid unnecessary costs to the Institute, please               
inform the Secretariat at least 3 days before the       
function if you have registered but subsequently 
are unable to attend the AGM lunch.

Signature

(Confirmation of registration will be sent to this email address)



Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore

20 Aljunied Road 
#06-02 CPA House 
Singapore 389805

Fold here

Fold here

Stamp
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING 2009/2010
Date: Saturday, 17 April 2010
Time: 2:15pm
Venue: Marina Mandarin Ballroom
 
Total number of members present
Practising members:   48
Non-Practising members: 293
Provisional members:   38

 379

Chairman and President: Dr Ernest Kan
Secretary: Ms Janet Tan

1.  NOTICE OF MEETING
The notice of meeting, having been circulated to members before the meeting, was taken as read. 

2.  PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS
The Chairman welcomed all members present at the Institute’s Annual General Meeting. He gave an account of the Institute’s 
achievements in the previous year following the launch of its AIM Strategic Plan at the last AGM. 

The Institute reinforced its leadership strength with the addition of Mr Teo Ser Luck, Senior Parliamentary Secretary for 
Ministry of Community Development, Youth and Sports and Ministry of Transport, as ICPAS Adviser and Mr Gerard Ee, 
Chairman of the National Kidney Foundation, as ICPAS Vice-President.

The Institute and its training arm, SAA Global Education (SAA-GE) also built capabilities by investing in human resources and 
systems and attracted talent to support key functions.

The Institute raised its profi le, and promoted the accountancy profession through strategic partnerships and sponsorship, 
key events, and publicity. The Institute continued to voice its views on matters impacting the profession in general and the 
Institute in particular.

In order to increase the brand awareness and visibility of CPA Singapore, the Institute rolled out a new series of CPA Singapore 
branding platforms showcasing the following key initiatives: CPA Singapore Thought Leadership, CPA Singapore Practice 
Leadership, CPA Singapore Professional Development and CPA Singapore Practice Development. 

The Institute has recorded higher brand awareness and visibility in 2009, having achieved a total of 110 media hits compared 
to 51 in 2008. Through a collaboration with The Straits Times, the Institute introduced a new “CPA Clinic” column, as a 
platform to showcase the services of CPA fi rms, as well as the value that CPA Singapore professionals bring to organisations 
as fi nance and business leaders. 

In August, the Institute joined 17 other major accounting institutes as a member of the prestigious International Innovation 
Network. This signaled strong recognition of the Institute’s stature from a network of major accountancy bodies worldwide.

The Ministry of Finance set up a high-level committee – Committee to Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) in 2008. The 
14-member committee, in which the Chairman participated as a representative of ICPAS, was tasked to develop a roadmap 
to develop and transform Singapore into a regional Accountancy hub for talent, services and education. CDAS had submitted 
its fi nal report to the Minister for Finance on 12th April, 2010.

The CDAS fi nal report contained 10 key recommendations, one of which was for ICPAS to transform into a professional 
accountancy body with a global outlook, membership and standing. CDAS had also recommended the development of a 
globally recognised post-university professional accountancy qualifi cation, which ICPAS would develop and administer.

The recommendation for ICPAS to transform into a global accountancy body signaled recognition by CDAS of the key role 
of ICPAS in shaping the accountancy landscape in Singapore.

The Institute also set up a research arm, ICPAS Research, to undertake applied and practice-focused research focusing on 
Accountancy and Business in the Asia Pacifi c. It also launched two new technical publications series by ICPAS Technical and 
ICPAS Quality Assurance, aimed at improving members’ technical know-how, as well as broadening their knowledge base 
through the dissemination of up-to-date and relevant information. An electronic newsletter, TechWatch, was also launched 
in February 2010, as a compendium of recent technical developments, fi nancial reporting, auditing and assurance, tax, 
regulation and business updates.
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The Chairman highlighted that prior to the AGM proceedings, the Institute launched its fi rst four Online Knowledge Centres 
– ICPAS Centre for Financial Reporting, Ethics Centre, Research and Country Desk – to equip members and the public with 
resources on accountancy and business.

With strong support from IRAS, the Institute had set up a new accreditation institute for tax professionals in Singapore. 
The Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals’ (SIATP) vision is to raise the standard of technical competence and 
capabilities of tax practitioners and tax professionals in business and government through accreditation. The accreditation 
scheme would have robust accreditation requirements for professionals who have completed accredited courses and attained 
the requisite practical experience in tax practice. 

For members thinking of setting up a public accounting practice or considering joining a partnership, the Institute, in 
partnership with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, had completed the development of a programme 
called Public Practice Programme (PPP). To be launched in the second half of 2010, the three-day programme would enable 
participants to understand the considerations of running their own practice. Subject to public consultation and approval, the 
PPP might be a requirement for accountants who would like to practise as a public accountant in Singapore.

The Institute, under the direction of the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA), carries out the Practice 
Monitoring Programme (PMP) for public accountants who audit non-public interest entities. The PMP provides quality 
assurance to market participants by ensuring that public accountants have complied with the prescribed auditing standards, 
methods, procedures and other requirements in discharging their responsibilities in the provision of public accountancy 
services in Singapore. The Institute had achieved a major milestone by completing the fi rst cycle of practice monitoring for 
public accountants who audit non-public interest entities, and had been duly recognised by ACRA.

During the year, the Institute worked closely with the Ministry of Finance (MOF), the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) 
and Singapore Exchange (SGX) on key reviews of the legislation and regulations governing the fi nancial sector, with the aim 
of providing a more robust regulatory framework which would help Singapore become the most attractive place in Asia and 
globally in which to do business. In addition, the Institute increased the number of dialogues with regulators and government 
bodies. 

The Chairman re-iterated that the Institute had done well in 2009 and expressed his gratitude to ICPAS Adviser, Council 
Members, committee members, the management and staff for their hard work and commitment and concluded his address 
by thanking members for their invaluable support.

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2008/2009 

3.1  The minutes of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2008/2009 held on 18 April 2009, having been circulated to all 
members, were taken as read.

3.2  On the proposal of Mr Tan See Peng and seconded by Mr Andrew Kuan, the minutes of AGM 2008/2009 were 
approved.

3.3  The Chairman then polled the members present on the confi rmation of the minutes. From the poll results, the 
Chairman declared that the minutes had been confi rmed. 

4.  ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2009/2010

4.1 The Chairman referred the members to the Annual Report (report) of the Council for the year 2009/2010 and the 
Accounts for the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2009 and invited comments from the members present.

4.2 Mr Tan See Peng referred to page 72, paragraph 4.3.1 of the minutes, wherein he had previously pointed out that 
the Practice Monitoring division was making losses, and suggested separately reporting the Institute’s expenses 
incurred according to Practising members and Non-Practising members. He questioned if the membership fees 
of Practising members correctly refl ected the expenses incurred for them, vis-à-vis membership fees of Non-
Practising members.

 Vice-President Mr Gerard Ee highlighted that the members would be aware that the fees have not been revised for 
over the last two decades. The subscription fees were not suffi cient to cover the operating costs of the Institute. 
The Institute had been subsidising its operating costs from revenue from SAA Global Education (SAA GE).  He 
emphasised that the key focus was to build the stature of the Institute so that members would have a sense of 
belonging, and feel proud to be an ICPAS member. He added that the Institute was striving to work towards 
becoming an Institute with global status.

4.3 Mr Tan See Peng highlighted an example in the Suntec REIT Annual Report. In the report, ‘Tax Transparency’ was 
a huge amount of $28.8 million in 2010 and $32 million in 2009. He had asked Suntec REIT at their AGM for an 
explanation but he did not get a satisfactory explanation. He asked if “tax transparency” could be a subject for 
the Institute’s Research unit to look into. The Chairman welcomed the feedback and indicated that the Institute 
would take note, especially since the Institute has set up a tax Institute – the Singapore Institute of Accredited Tax 
Professionals (SIATP).
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4.4 Mr S. Nallakaruppan, a Non-Practising member, congratulated the Institute and expressed his sincere appreciation 
to the Chairman, council members as well as staff for showing lots of drive and enthusiasm in developing the 
Institute as a renowned institution in Singapore and in the region. 

4.4.1 Mr Nallakaruppan also expressed his concern about the news of confl ict of interest issues at Goldman Sachs. Mr S. 
Nallakaruppan suggested ways in which the Institute could maintain and enhance the integrity of the accounting 
profession, such as through education and disciplinary action. 

 The Chairman thanked Mr Nallakaruppan for the compliment and replied that the Institute was mindful about 
confl ict of interest. The Institute had implemented a system whereby Council members had to sign a statement 
declaring their fi nancial interest in companies.   

 The Chairman noted Mr Nallakaruppan’s focus was on members’ education and indicated that members could 
refer to the Institute’s newly launched online knowledge centres, one of which was ICPAS Ethics Centre, which 
would be useful on this aspect. He encouraged members to access the online knowledge centres and welcomed 
members’ feedback as the Institute would continue to learn and enhance the content on the knowledge centres.

 
 With regard to ‘recalcitrant members’, the Chairman indicated that the Institute had its disciplinary process. When 

the Institute’s Executive Director received a complaint against a member, the Executive Director, independent of 
infl uence by Council Members, would make a decision. If there were a call to investigate, the Executive Director 
would refer the complaint to the investigation committee. He added that the investigation committee was chaired 
by Vice-President Gerard Ee and that the committee included a lawyer who is a lay person, to provide an objective 
opinion. 

 If the member was found guilty, the Institute would have a separate disciplinary committee that would take the 
necessary actions, including suspension of membership. The Institute had suspended members in the past for their 
misconduct.

4.5 Mr Ng Yong Huan queried the balance sheet for the year 31 December 2009 (ref. page 45), pertaining to fi xed 
deposits for 2009 and 2008.  Mr Ng felt that rather than placing its money in fi xed deposits, the Institute could 
place the money with the Singapore Government Securities, where the risks were low and for longer tenures, the 
interest earned could be more than 3 percent per annum. Based on the Institute’s cash fl ow, Mr Ng felt that the 
Institute could place at least S$3 million safely in Singapore Government Securities. He noted that the interest 
earned from the bank was too low.

 The Chairman responded that it was a good point, saying that the Institute sought to maximise its interest earnings 
from excess cash. However, he highlighted that the Institute was going through a phase of transformation with its 
strategic plan, AIM and taking into consideration the CDAS recommendations, the Institute would need liquidity 
to carry out the various initiatives. Based on the recommendation by CDAS, the Institute would be administering 
the Qualifi cation Programme (QP). That would cost the Institute a large amount of money in terms of infrastructure 
and curriculum development. The Chairman said that nevertheless, he valued Mr Ng’s suggestion and the Institute 
would look at the cash fl ow and assess the feasibility. 

 Vice-President thanked Mr Ng’s for his sound reminder. However Vice-President highlighted that until 2008, the 
Institute had a bank loan, which was cleared only in 2009 (ref. page 45, under Balance Sheet). If the members 
looked solely at the cash and bank balance and fi xed deposits, Mr Ng was very right in his recommendation to 
place the money in fi nancial instruments other than the fi xed deposit. However, Vice-President highlighted that 
regarding the amount of $3.6 million in course fees received in advance from SAA GE; the Institute would need 
the liquid cash fl ow under the arrangements for EduTrust.  After deducting the $3.6 million (ref. the operating 
expenses on page 44), the Institute would not be in a position to lock in $2 to 3 million dollars for the long term, 
especially until the Institute could project expenditure in the next 12 months. He added that the Institute would 
take note in the future that if it had any excess cash, it would consider better opportunities available.

4.6 Mr Andrew Kuan referred to item 20 on Notes to the Financial Statements (ref. page 62), regarding key management 
personnel compensation.  He asked who the key management personnel were, how many there were and what 
kind of compensation it was.  

 The Chairman replied that it referred to seven key management personnel, comprising the Executive Director, 
Chief Operating Offi cer, Training Director, Deputy Director for Technical Division, Assistant Director for Continuing 
Professional Education, Assistant Director of Special Projects and Head of Practice Monitoring Division.

4.6.1 Mr Andrew Kuan queried why the Institute termed the compensation as ‘short-term employee benefi t’ when the 
employees had been with the Institute for a long time.  

 The Chairman explained that this was a standard accounting term as prescribed by the Singapore FRS. Vice-
President added that the term ‘short-term benefi t’ referred to the nature of the benefi t, and not the employee.
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4.6.2 In response to Mr Kuan’s query as to whether it was an accrued item, Chairman replied that it was a disclosure item.

4.7 Associate Professor Themin Suwardy from SMU asked what the Institute would do to attract talent to the accounting 
profession with the upcoming changes in CDAS, and the idea of transforming the accounting sector. 

 The Chairman replied that if the members looked at CDAS’ recommendations, there were three pillars; Services, 
Talent and Education. The Chairman indicated that the attraction of talent to the accounting profession was not 
just the job of ICPAS alone.  ICPAS was just one of the participants in the eco-system to help to attract talent. He 
added that the business sector will also play a part.

 The Chairman further highlighted that building credibility was just one way to attract talent. The Institute was also 
trying to increase the value chain in terms of enhancing the qualifi cation. He explained that when the Institute 
enhanced the value of the qualifi cation, not only was the Institute bringing talent into the accounting profession in 
Singapore but also with reference to CDAS’ recommendations under the education pillar, the Institute would also 
attract many foreign students to apply for the qualifi cation in Singapore, which would in turn boost Singapore’s 
economy. 

 Vice-President added that members could refer to the CDAS report and recommendations. The Institute would be 
working closely with stakeholders to help Singapore accountants have the opportunity to specialise and become 
Chief Financial Offi cers (CFOs).  He added that the Institute would probably be leading the world in this aspect, as 
very few places in the world had given much thought to the training of CFOs.

  
4.8  Mr Tan See Peng referred to the Chairman’s earlier presentation on the potential review of the Institute’s 

Constitution. Mr Tan suggested the structure of the constitution should be amended such that the election process 
should be open to all members, and not just within each membership category. The Chairman replied that the 
Institute would take note of it. The Council would discuss with the team that was going to review the constitution 
and benchmark it against other accountancy bodies.

4.9  As no further matters were raised, the Annual Report of the Institute 2009/2010 and the Accounts of the Institute 
for the year ended 31 December 2009 were received by the meeting, as proposed by Mr Andrew Kuan and 
seconded by Mr Tan See Peng.

5.  ELECTION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

5.1 The Chairman informed that the following members of the Council had retired in accordance with the provisions 
of Articles 38 to 40 of the Constitution:

 Practising members Non-Practising members
 Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong Gerard Ee Hock Kim
 Khoo Ho Tong Loh Hoon Sun
 Lim Boon Cheng Pang Yang Hoong
 Yeoh Oon Jin Frances Wong Lai Yong

5.2 As only four nominations each had been received in respect of the Practising members and Non-Practising 
members, the four Practising members and four Non-Practising members were deemed to be duly elected 
members of the Council for a two-year term as from the Annual General Meeting in accordance with Rule 23 of 
the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules. They are:

 Practising members Non-Practising members
 Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong Ramasamy Dhinakaran
 Khoo Ho Tong Gerard Ee Hock Kim
 Lim Boon Cheng Jeann Low Ngiap Jong
 Yeoh Oon Jin Frances Wong Lai Yong

6.  TERMINATION OF MEETING

In conclusion, the Chairman cited Rules 5 and 6 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) rules, which provided that no motion shall 
be discussed at any Annual General Meeting of the Institute unless the required, notice of 14 days was given. As the secretary 
had not received any notice and all items on the agenda had been dealt with the meeting was formally declared closed at 
3.30pm.

Signed as a correct record

Chairman



Dated this  day of 2011.

I,  of  being a member of the Institute,

do hereby appoint   of    , or failing him

 of    as my proxy to vote for me at 

the Annual General Meeting of the Institute to be held on 16 April 2011 and any adjournment of such meeting.

Form of Proxy

THE SCHEDULE
            Rule 12

THE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
OF SINGAPORE (GENERAL MEETINGS) RULES

Signed by

in the presence of    

member of Institute of Certified )

Public Accountants of Singapore, of   )

)

)

)

)

)

)

(Address) (Signature of member)

 

  
 
   (Signature of Witness)

NOTE: 
   
  

   
  
  

   
   
  

    

A member entitled to vote may appoint as his proxy any other member who is qualified to vote, except that 
no member shall be entitled to vote by proxy in the election of a member or members of the Council. [Rule 
11, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules] 

The instrument of proxy shall be in the form set out in the Schedule and shall be signed in the presence of 
another member, other than the proxy holder, who is entitled to vote. [Rule 12, ICPAS (General Meetings) 
Rules] 

The proxy shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting unless the instrument of proxy  has been deposited with 
the Executive Director not less than 48 hours before the date and time fixed for the meeting. [Rule 15, ICPAS 
(General Meetings) Rules]
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